
1

Agenda
Contact Officer: Ron Schrieber , Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 01235 422524

E-mail: ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 8 November 2017

Website: http://www.southoxon.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

General Licensing Committee

WILL BE HELD ON THURSDAY 16 NOVEMBER 2017 AT 6.00 PM

MEETING ROOM 1, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, MILTON, 
ABINGDON OX14 4SB

Members of the Committee:
David Dodds (Chairman)
Joan Bland
Nigel Champken-Woods
Pat Dawe
Stefan Gawrysiak

Paul Harrison
Lorraine Hillier
Imran Lokhon
Anthony Nash

Bill Service (Vice-
Chairman)
Alan Thompson
Ian White

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  
These include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For 
this or any other special requirements (such as access facilities) 
please contact the officer named on this agenda.  Please give as 
much notice as possible before the meeting.

Public Document Pack



2

1 Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence.  

2 Minutes  (Pages 3 - 4)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the General Licensing Committee minutes of 
the meeting held on 31 May 2017 (attached).  

3 Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.   

4 Urgent business and chairman's announcements  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent, and to receive any announcements from the chairman.  

5 Public participation  

To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have 
registered to speak.  

6 Low emission strategy  (Pages 5 - 138)

To consider the report of the interim head of waste, leisure parks and environmental 
health (attached).

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic Services



1

Minutes
OF A MEETING OF THE

General Licensing Committee

HELD ON WEDNESDAY 31 MAY 2017 AT 10.00 AM

MEETING ROOMS 5/6, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, MILTON, 
ABINGDON OX14 4SB

Present:

David Dodds (Chairman)

Joan Bland, Stefan Gawrysiak, Stephen Harrod, Anthony Nash, Bill Service and Alan 
Thompson

Apologies:

Nigel Champken-Woods, Pat Dawe and Ian White tendered apologies. 

Officers:

Robert Draper and Ron Schrieber

Also present: 

Councillor Elizabeth Gillespie

6 Minutes 

RESOLVED: to adopt as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 18 May 
2017 and agree that the chairman signs them as such.

7 Declarations of interest 

None.

8 Urgent business and chairman's announcements 

None.

9 Public participation 

None.

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2

10 Street Trading Policy 

At its meeting held on 9 March 2017 the committee resolved to publish a draft 
resolution for public consultation under Paragraph 2(1) of Schedule 4 to the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, to designate all streets within the 
district as ‘consent streets’ for the purposes of street trading.

The committee considered a report from the head of legal and democratic services 
which stated that there had been no responses to the consultation and, accordingly, 
recommended adoption of the resolution to designate all streets within the district as 
‘consent streets’ for the purposes of street trading.

RESOLVED: to 

(a) Adopt the resolution under Paragraph 2(1) of Schedule 4 to the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, to designate all streets within 
the district as ‘consent streets’ for the purposes of street trading; and 

(b) authorise the head of legal and democratic services to do all things necessary 
to give effect to the said resolution.  

The meeting closed at 10.05 am

Chairman Date

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



General Licensing

Committee

Report of Head of Waste, Parks, Leisure & Environmental Health
Author: Claire Spendley
Telephone: 01235 422129 / 07801203515
E-mail: claire.spendley@southandvale.gov.uk
Cabinet member responsible: Tony Harbour
Tel: 07771594368
E-mail:tony.harbour@southoxon.gov.uk
To: General Licensing Committee
DATE: 16 November 2017

Low Emission Strategy

Recommendation(s)

(a) That the General Licensing Committee make recommendations to the 
Council for its final approval on the Low Emission Strategy that includes the 
viability of trials for the proposed transport measures identified in Wallingford 
and Watlington. 

(b) That the head of service with responsibility for environmental health be given 
delegated powers to make any minor amendments to the strategy in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for environmental health and the 
Chairman of the General Licensing Committee.  

Purpose of Report

1. To request the General Licensing Committee to adopt the draft Low Emission 
Strategy (LES) for South Oxfordshire District Council (appendix one).  If the 
committee adopt the draft strategy, work will continue into the feasibility of 
implementing the measures proposed in it. 

Strategic Objectives 

2. Building thriving communities - making communities clean and safe by:

delivering new and ambitious air quality action plans to improve air quality across 
the district, and specifically tackle poor air quality in Henley, Wallingford and 
Watlington.

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



Background

3. The Environment Act 1995 places a statutory duty on local authorities to review 
and assess local air quality.  It includes a requirement to prepare and implement 
an air quality action plan (AQAP) where air quality objectives are not being met. 

4. South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) adopted its AQAP in February of 2015.  
Actions within the plan included the development of a LES and three low emission 
zone feasibility studies.  The council commissioned Ricardo-AEA to prepare the 
draft strategy and complete the feasibility studies.  The work was paid for by 
government funding. 

5. The General Licensing Committee has delegated authority to deal with air quality 
issues.  However, at its meeting on 20 July 2017 in considering a petition, Council 
resolved that recommendations from this committee on the Low Emission Strategy 
should be made to Council – see paragraph 19 of this report.

The draft Low Emission Strategy

6. The draft LES covers the whole of the district and it proposes actions that will 
improve air quality across South Oxfordshire.  The low emission zone feasibility 
studies relate to Watlington, Wallingford and Henley as these towns have air 
quality management areas (AQMA) in place due to their specific air quality 
problems.  The LES incorporates the findings of the three feasibility studies.

7. The draft strategy includes some actions that are already in our AQAP; these are:

  provision of electric vehicle recharging points
  consider a reduction in car park fees for low emission vehicles
  consider updating the councils’ procurement policy to make it greener
  the inclusion of air quality requirements in planning policies
  promoting the uptake of low emission vehicles
  promoting and supporting behavioural change.

It also proposes some new actions and one new target:

  a low emission bus strategy including investigating the potential for a peak 
 time closure of Wallingford bridge

  a low emission freight strategy including investigating the potential for a
   freight clearway in Watlington
  two per cent of cars and small vans to be electric by 2020 and five per cent 

by 2025.

8. Following the General Licensing Committee decision in December 2015, the draft 
LES went out to public consultation in February 2016 for eight weeks.  Publicity for 
this included an article on the front cover of Outlook, press releases, social media, 
an article in In Focus and in South News.

9. The results of the original consultation completed in February 2016 showed 
general support for all the proposals, highlighted in appendix two.

10.Two proposals attracted a lot of comment.  The first is to trial the removal of on 
street parking in areas of Watlington during peak travel times and the second is to 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



investigate the restriction of traffic to buses only over Wallingford Bridge during 
peak travel times.  These two actions could resolve the air quality problems in 
these towns resulting in the AQMAs being revoked.  If these measures were to be 
trialled this would be through the use of traffic regulation orders in county council 
lead trials.

11. In Watlington people were concerned that traffic speed would increase and result 
in a greater risk of accidents.  They also thought that alternative parking would be 
needed.  In Wallingford people commented that the proposal to restrict access to 
the bridge might cause congestion elsewhere or have a negative economic impact 
on the town.  If the decision is taken to trial these schemes, before implementation 
we will investigate them further and, where possible, mitigate against the concerns 
raised.  Assuming both trials were to go ahead they would be fully evaluated and a 
report including the results would be presented to the General Licensing 
Committee for a final decision on permanent implementation.  

12.Concerns were also raised that the draft LES did not include any Henley specific 
actions.  The reason for this was that the scenarios modelled did not result in 
significant air quality improvements and so the associated actions were not taken 
forward for inclusion in the draft document. 

13.Following discussion of the results of the February 2016 consultation with cabinet 
members in July 2016, officers were asked to commission further targeted 
consultation on these three issues in the three affected towns. 

14. In September 2016, the council contracted MEL Research to undertake further 
public engagement activities in Watlington, Wallingford and Henley to develop a 
better understanding of residents’ views.  A suitable methodology was agreed 
including sampled door to door surveys to canvass the opinion of people living in 
affected streets and drop-in events were organised to provide people with an 
opportunity to speak to council officers.  

15.Self-completion surveys specific to each of the towns were also made available 
online and to people attending the drop-in events.  This was to make sure that all 
residents had an opportunity to participate.    

16.The MEL public engagement summary report (appendix three) details responses 
to this engagement work.  The council can be confident that responses to the door 
to door survey are representative of the views of people living in streets likely to be 
affected by the proposals.  Surveys completed online and at the drop-in events 
provide additional insight into wider opinion in these towns, however, they are not 
strictly representative as no sample control was used.  We know this as there was 
evidence at the events of respondents completing multiple paper surveys as well 
as making online representations.

Watlington issues

17. In Watlington 66 per cent of people interviewed during the door to door surveys 
said they disagreed with the proposal to remove the on-street parking.  These 
people cited the loss of residents on street parking and the fear of increased traffic 
speeds as reasons for their opposition.  These views were echoed in surveys 
completed at the drop-in event and online where 78 per cent of people said they 
disagreed with the proposal.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Wallingford issues

18. In Wallingford, door to door surveys showed that the majority of residents (58 per 
cent) living in affected streets supported the proposal to restrict vehicular access to 
the bridge.  Only 26 per cent were against.  In contrast, surveys completed online 
and at the drop-in event showed that 72 per cent of respondents disagreed with 
the proposal.  The main reasons for the objections were concerns over congestion 
elsewhere in the town and concerns over the potential economic impact.  However, 
due to inaccurate media reports many people thought the closure would be for 
much longer periods than would be the case and this is likely to have influenced 
their response. 

19. In accordance with the council’s petition scheme, which requires that a petition with 
in excess of 500 signatures will be discussed at Council, Council considered a 
petition containing in excess of 1700 signatures at its meeting on 20 July 2017.  
Council resolved to refer the petition to the General Licensing Committee for 
consideration together with the views expressed by councillors.  The text of the 
relevant minute is set out in appendix five.

20.SODC and Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) are aware of the concerns raised in 
the petition and until further feasibility works are carried out to provide clear 
evidence we are unable to comment on the concerns raised.   In adopting the 
strategy, we are simply requesting permission to explore the feasibility of such 
options not asking members to make a decision on them at this time.  If after 
exploring the feasibility SODC and OCC consider a part time traffic restriction of 
Wallingford bridge would be a viable measure, and were in the position to trial this, 
there would be further public consultation with facts and evidence presented.

Henley issues

21. In Henley, door to door surveys showed that the majority of respondents (63 per 
cent) were not aware of existing measures being undertaken to reduce air pollution 
in the town.  About half of people completing the survey online or at the drop-in 
event were also unaware.  When asked what more could be done to address air 
quality in the town, the suggested actions were either already in the AQAP or had 
previously been considered by the council and deemed unviable. 

22.A composite report containing the results of both consultations is included in 
appendix four.

23.No new viable measures were suggested as a result of either consultation. 

24.SODC is working closely with Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) exploring the 
viability of all measures laid out in the Strategy.  All transport related measures will 
be fully assessed in relation to both highway safety and network management 
perspectives prior to the decision to move to any trials. 

Financial Implications

25.There are no financial implications resulting from the proposed adoption of the 
strategy, any funding required to complete trials or further works would be sought 
from external funding through air quality and transport grants.

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



Legal Implications

26.There is a legal requirement under the Environment Act 1995 for a local authority 
to produce an action plan in pursuit of the achievement of air quality standards and 
objectives in the designated area.  The low emission strategy is a key action in 
SODC’s air quality action plan that was adopted in 2015.

Risks

27.This work was carried out as a result of a successful DEFRA air quality grant, after 
having modelled many scenarios it has concluded that there are measures that 
could enable us to revoke two of the three AQMA’s within the district.  If we do not 
fully explore the feasibility of the proposed measures, it is unlikely DEFRA will 
provide any future funding for air quality work.

Other Implications

28.Officers are required to report annually to DEFRA on progress towards the 
measures within the action plan, these reports are then made publically available 
via our website.  The adoption of a LES is a key measure in the air quality action 
plan. 

29.The Environment Act 1995 places a duty on both the district and county council to 
work towards achieving the national air quality objectives.  We have worked closely 
with OCC throughout the creation of this low emission strategy.  Some of the 
proposals within this strategy are outside of the district councils control and come 
under those of the highways authority (OCC), therefore these proposals would not 
go ahead without their full support. 

Conclusion

30.The draft LES sets out potential solutions to the district’s air quality issues and 
includes actions that could resolve the air quality issues in Wallingford and 
Watlington.  The committee is invited to consider the proposed solutions set out in 
the draft LES having regard to the consultation responses and the Wallingford 
petition and make recommendations to Council.

31. If the draft LES is adopted officers will continue to develop the proposals laid out 
within it.  Before implementation officers will investigate them further and where 
possible mitigate against the concerns raised during the consultations.  If the trials 
go ahead they would be fully evaluated and a report including the results would be 
presented to the General Licensing Committee for a final decision on permanent 
implementation.  

Background Papers

 Appendices

 Appendix 1 – Low Emission Strategy
 Appendix 2 – Consultation report – July 2016
 Appendix 3 – MEL Public Engagement Report – February 2017
 Appendix 4 - Consultation composite report – March 2017
 Appendix 5 – Wallingford Bridge petition

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

A Low Emission Strategy for South 
Oxfordshire 
Final report 
___________________________________________________ 

Report for South Oxfordshire District Council 
      

 

ED 58208  |  Issue Number 2   |   Date 24/09/2015 
Ricardo in Confidence 

 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire   |  i

 

  
Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

Customer: Contact: 

South Oxfordshire District Council Guy Hitchcock 
Ricardo Energy & Environment 
Gemini Building, Harwell, Didcot, OX11 0QR, 
United Kingdom 

 

t: +44 (0) 1235 75 3327 

e: guy.hitchcock@ricardo.com 

 
Ricardo-AEA Ltd is certificated to ISO9001 and 
ISO14001 

Customer reference: 

SODC LES 

Confidentiality, copyright & reproduction: 

This report is the Copyright of South Oxfordshire 
District Council and Ricardo Energy and 
Environment. It has been prepared by Ricardo 
Energy & Environment, a trading name of 
Ricardo-AEA Ltd, under contract to South 
Oxfordshire District Council dated 01/05/2013. 
The contents of this report may not be 
reproduced in whole or in part, nor passed to any 
organisation or person without the specific prior 
written permission of South Oxfordshire District 
Council. Ricardo Energy & Environment accepts 
no liability whatsoever to any third party for any 
loss or damage arising from any interpretation or 
use of the information contained in this report, or 
reliance on any views expressed therein. 
 
 

Author: 

Guy Hitchcock 

Approved By: 

Beth Conlan 

Date: 

24 September 2015 

Ricardo Energy & Environment reference: 

Ref: ED58208- Issue Number 2 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire   |  ii

 

  
Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

Table of contents 

1 The need for a low emission strategy ...................................................................... 1 
1.1 The national drivers ........................................................................................................... 1 

1.1.1 Air pollution ............................................................................................................... 1 
1.1.2 Climate change ........................................................................................................ 1 
1.1.3 An integrated approach ............................................................................................ 2 

1.2 Air quality and climate change in South Oxfordshire ........................................................ 2 

2 Objectives of a Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire .............................. 5 
2.1 What is a Low Emission Strategy (LES)? ......................................................................... 5 
2.2 Defining principles of a LES for South Oxfordshire ........................................................... 5 
2.3 The core themes of the LES .............................................................................................. 5 

3 Key actions in the strategy ....................................................................................... 7 
3.1 Promoting low emission behaviour.................................................................................... 7 
3.2 Supporting the uptake of electric and low emission vehicles ............................................ 8 
3.3 A low emission freight strategy .......................................................................................... 9 
3.4 A low emission bus strategy ............................................................................................ 10 
3.5 Planning and procurement .............................................................................................. 10 

3.5.1 Planning.................................................................................................................. 10 
3.5.2 Low emission procurement .................................................................................... 11 

4 The impact of the Low Emission Strategy ............................................................. 12 
4.1 Emission benefits ............................................................................................................ 12 

4.1.1 Impacts across the district ...................................................................................... 12 
4.1.2 Impacts in the AQMAs ............................................................................................ 12 

4.2 Economic assessment .................................................................................................... 14 

5 Taking the LES forward ........................................................................................... 16 
5.1 A partnership approach ................................................................................................... 16 
5.2 Funding opportunities ...................................................................................................... 16 

5.2.1 Office of Low Emission Vehicles (OLEV) ............................................................... 17 
5.2.2 Transport funding ................................................................................................... 17 
5.2.3 Public health funding .............................................................................................. 17 
5.2.4 Planning gain .......................................................................................................... 18 
5.2.5 Economic development funds ................................................................................ 18 
5.2.6 Grant and other funding sources ............................................................................ 18 

 
 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire 

 

 

 
 1 Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

   

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

1 The need for a low emission strategy 

Air pollution is estimated to be responsible for 52,5001 premature deaths in the UK each year.  Climate 
change is having adverse economic effects due to increases in temperature and extreme weather 
events such as flooding impacting on infrastructure, agriculture and local habitats.  The Council is 
committed to reducing both air pollution and carbon emissions to ensure a high quality and healthy 
environment for the residents of South Oxfordshire. 

Transport activity is one of the key sources of both air pollution emissions and climate change related 
emissions.  These emissions are not only generated in major towns and cities, but also in more rural 
areas such as South Oxfordshire.   

Managing transport emissions, using a range of local powers, will improve local air quality, reduce 
health related impacts and contribute to reducing carbon emissions in relation to climate change.  This 
low emission strategy sets out how this could be done in South Oxfordshire. 

1.1 The national drivers   

1.1.1 Air pollution  

There is clear evidence of the impact of traffic-related air pollution on human health.  The greatest 
evidence is in relation to particulate emissions, most importantly fine particulate matter (PM2.5).  
However, recent evidence on the health impact of nitrogen dioxide (NO2) has put this at a similar level 
to particulate matter.  Health-based air pollutant concentration limits have been established in European 
Air Quality Directives to be achieved for the protection of public health.  The UK's Air Quality Strategy 
(AQS) takes this forward in the UK and defines a central role for local action through the Local Air 
Quality Management (LAQM) regime.   

However, despite improvements in emissions from all sectors in recent years pollutant levels in our 
towns and cities have remained stubbornly high.  There remains a significant failure to comply with the 
health–based limits in respect to nitrogen dioxide (NO2) levels, with some breaches of the particulate 
matter (PM) limits at local hotspots. This is reflected in local air quality management data where some 
600 Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) have been declared across the country due to failure to 
meet the air quality limits.  The vast majority of these, some 85%, have been declared for breaches of 
the NO2 limit value, with a further 15% declared due to a PM10 breach, showing that a small PM problem 
remains.  Over 95% of the breaches have been attributed to transport emissions, demonstrating the 
major role that local transport plays in contributing to poor air quality.   

Due to these continuing breaches of the air quality limits the UK is now in breach of the European 
Directive and the European Commission is taking infraction proceedings against the UK which could 
result in significant fines, which could in turn be passed onto to local authorities where the breaches 
occur.  Therefore the UK Government and local authorities need to take steps to reduce emissions, 
particularly in relation to transport activity. 

1.1.2 Climate change 

The Government’s commitment to tackling climate change is enshrined in the Climate Change Act 2008, 
with a target of an 80% reduction in greenhouse gas emissions by 2050 compared to 1990 levels.  This 
overall target is being broken down into a series of five year carbon budgets, which are being developed 
and monitored by the Committee on Climate Change (CCC).  The Carbon Plan brings together the 
current coalition Government's national policy plans that will deliver the first four carbon budgets 
producing a 50% emissions reduction on 1990 levels by 2027.   

Local authorities have a significant role to play in delivering and supporting these Government 
objectives within local communities.  Their role was explored in detail by the CCC in 2012 and they 
concluded that local authorities: 

                                                      
1 ‘Draft plans to improve air quality in the UK - Tackling nitrogen dioxide in our towns and cities’, DEFRA, September 2015 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



 A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire 

 

 

 
 2 Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

   

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

“have significant scope to influence emissions in buildings, surface transport, and waste, ... 
(and) there is an opportunity to reduce emissions in these sectors by 20% in 2020 from 2010 

levels” 

To achieve this the committee also recommended that local authorities should draw up low carbon 
plans with high levels of ambition. 

1.1.3 An integrated approach 

The Government has recognised the benefits of tackling both air quality and climate change together 
in an integrated approach.  A report by DEFRA in 2010 explored the benefits of an integrated approach 
and the need to carry this out at both a national and local level, and concludes: 

“Optimising climate change policies for air pollution can yield additional benefits of some £24 
billion (net present value) by 2050.” 

“Action at national, regional and local levels will be needed to ensure policies are integrated to 
maximise these co-benefits and ensure ambitious but realistic targets for air pollution are set for 
the future” 

As part of this commitment to integrating air quality and climate change at the local level DEFRA have 
been supporting the work of the Low Emission Strategies Partnership and have published a good 
practice guide on Low Emission Strategies. 

1.2 Air quality and climate change in South Oxfordshire 
As a largely rural district South Oxfordshire has very good air quality, however, there are a few areas 
where congested narrow streets have resulted in air pollution levels above the regulated limit values.  
In these locations the Council has to declare AQMA’s and put in place actions to improve air quality (an 
Air Quality Action Plan).  In South Oxfordshire we have three AQMA’s in Henley, Wallingford and 
Watlington.  In Henley some streets, in particular Duke Street, have air pollution levels nearly 50% 
higher than the regulated limit.  In Wallingford and Watlington air pollution levels are about 25% above 
the limit values. 

Figure 1: The extent of the AQMA in Wallingford 

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



 A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire 

 

 

 
 3 Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

   

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

In addition there are some areas, such as Didcot and Thame, which have streets that are close to the 
air quality limit values.  With new housing, economic growth and potential traffic growth in these areas 
there is the danger that further breaches of the the air quality limit values may occur.  Therefore this 
Low Emission Strategy is needed to mitigate existing problems and help prevent further problems from 
arising. 

In terms of climate change like all areas across the country we contribute to carbon emissions from 
burning fossil fuel to heat our homes and drive our cars.  Nationally we have a target of an 80% reduction 
in emissions by 2050.  Although action is needed at the national level we also have a role to play as a 
local authority.  We already work hard to reduce our own emissions but we also need to help residents 
and businesses across the district to manage their carbon emissions.  This strategy will help us co-
ordinate actions to reduce transport emissions across the district. 

Transport emissions are a key component of both air quality and climate change related emissions in 
South Oxfordshire and provide the focus of this Low Emission Strategy.  An estimate of the total 
emissions related to transport in the district was made for 2015 and is shown in Figure 2 below.   

Figure 2: Estimated CO2 and NOx emissions from transport in South Oxfordshire 

 

 

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



 A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire 

 

 

 
 4 Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

   

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

 

In terms of carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions passenger cars are the dominant source accounting for 
59% of emissions.  Freight transport accounts for the bulk of the rest.  In terms of nitrogen oxides (NOx) 
emissions, the primary air pollutant of concern, we can see that diesel vehicles are the main culprit.  
Diesel cars alone account for 41% of NOx emissions, with diesel freight vehicles accounting for a further 
49%. 

Therefore in developing a Low Emission Strategy (LES) to reduce emissions across the district the 
primary target will be passenger cars and freight vehicles, with a particular focus on diesel vehicles. 

  

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



 A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire 

 

 

 
 5 Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

   

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

2 Objectives of a Low Emission Strategy for South 
Oxfordshire 

2.1 What is a Low Emission Strategy (LES)? 
A Low Emission Strategy is an integrated approach to reducing transport emissions, both air quality 
and climate change related, across the district.  It is a key element of the Air Quality Action Plan, pulling 
together transport measures that will support achievement of air limits where these are being breached.  
However, it is not focused purely on the AQMAs, as it will be seeking to reduce emissions across the 
district in order to prevent further breaches from occurring and generating wider health benefits. 

The strategy will also provide a focus for measures to reduce carbon emissions from transport activity 
in South Oxfordshire.  By considering both air quality and climate change together it aims to maximise 
the co-benefits of tackling both issues in a co-ordinated way, allowing resources to be targeted 
efficiently.  

2.2 Defining principles of a LES for South Oxfordshire 
In developing an integrated package of measures for the LES a number of key principles were 
established: 

 The LES will seek to reduce both air pollution and climate related emissions from transport in 

an integrated way. 

 It will consider the wider context of South Oxfordshire and carry out actions with a wider set of 

partners.  In particular it will recognise: 

o Policies and programmes that are developed jointly with the Vale of the White Horse 

District Council who are its partner authority; and 

o Activities that are best carried out at a county level working with the County Council 

and the Oxfordshire air quality group. 

 The LES will support the economic development aspirations of the Council, in particular  

o Helping understand how improved environmental quality supports economic growth; 

o Exploring links with the Local Enterprise Partnership and the wider business benefits 

of a low emission transport system. 

2.3 The core themes of the LES 
Working across the Council, and with its key partners, a group of five core themes were identified for 
the LES comprising: 

 Promoting low emission behaviours  

 Supporting the uptake of electric vehicles 

 A bus emission strategy 

 A freight emission strategy  

 Low emission planning and procurement  

Each of these themes are not separate but overlap and will work together as a coherent whole in order 
to provide an effective LES.  For example the electric vehicle strategy will use planning and procurement 
powers to promote the uptake of vehicles, and the low emission behaviour theme includes eco-driving 
and anti-idling campaigns that will also be reflected in the bus and freight emission strategies.  This 
integrated approach is illustrated below. 

 

 

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



 A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire 

 

 

 
 6 Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

   

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

 

Figure 3: The five core LES themes 

 

 

 

The key actions that the Council is proposing within each of these themes is set out in the following 
section. 

 

  

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



 A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire 

 

 

 
 7 Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

   

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

3 Key actions in the strategy 

3.1 Promoting low emission behaviour 
Emissions from cars, especially diesel cars, are a key source of air pollutant emissions and of the air 
quality problems in all of the AQMAs and the dominant issue in Henley.  Therefore we will work with 
residents and business across the district to promote behaviours that will reduce emissions from 
transport activity. In particular we will:  

 Support transport, air quality and health behaviour change campaigns, working with the 

County, local health bodies and community groups. 

 Promote low emission vehicles and driving styles. 

 Carry out anti-idling campaigns to reduce emissions from stationary vehicles. 

In terms of wider behavioural change promotion campaigns; there are a whole package of soft and hard 
measures designed to encourage mode shift away from the car to other modes.  The behaviour change 
element is the key aspect of this in terms of travel plans, personalised travel marketing and community 
engagement.  It is estimated that such campaigns can produce a 7-8% reduction in road traffic in target 
areas, with an estimated cost of 4p per car km removed, as well as generate health improvements from 
increased physical activity. 

In particular we will: 

 Explore options with the County to roll out further the ‘Travel Choices’ initiative being taken in 

Didcot and the Science Vale. 

 Support the County to ensure that local air quality issues and information on low emission 

vehicles are included in Oxfordshire integrated travel planning system. 

 Look for opportunities to work with local community groups to support travel behaviour 

change projects. 

 Ensure that low emission vehicles and eco-driving behaviours are considered within any 

behavioural change campaigns being taken forward. 

Figure 4: The Brompton Dock cycle hire scheme at Didcot station 

 

 

Page 20

Agenda Item 6



 A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire 

 

 

 
 8 Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

   

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

We will lead by example ensuring that we have an up to date travel plan to promote cycling and public 
transport to staff, including the investigation of pool cars so that some staff could avoid the need to drive 
to work.  The travel plan will also include advice on eco-driving and low emission vehicles. 

In relation to promotion of anti-idling, experience from other UK authorities with anti-idling campaigns 
suggests that a flexible approach rather formal enforcement be adopted due to the potential costs.  As 
such we will: 

 Work with the County to establish ‘Switch-off’ signage at key traffic queue or waiting locations 

in the district. 

 Encourage the work of the bus quality partnership and partnership working with the freight 

industry to include messaging on anti-idling and efficient driving behaviours, potentially as 

part of a wide promotional scheme such as the EcoStars2 freight recognition scheme. 

 Include anti-idling information with other vehicle information in behavioural change 

programmes. 

3.2 Supporting the uptake of electric and low emission vehicles 
Electric vehicles have zero tailpipe emissions and therefore offer significant potential to help tackle local 
air quality issues. They also have lower overall carbon emissions than petrol or diesel vehicles, and this 
difference will increase as emissions from electricity generation reduce with greater use of renewable 
energy.  Therefore the promotion of electric vehicles (EVs), as an alternative to diesel and petrol cars, 
provides a key route to reducing emissions from car traffic.  There is also some potential for the use of 
electric buses and delivery vehicles, again helping to reduce emissions from diesel vehicles. 

The promotion of electric vehicles also fits well with the development of the ‘Science Vale’ enterprise 
zone, providing potential economic opportunities for the supply and maintenance of these vehicles.  It 
will also contribute to managing emissions from the additional transport activity expected as part of the 
Science Vale development. 

Figure 5: Hertz Electric Car Club Vehicle in Oxford 

 

Overall a target of 2% of all light duty vehicles being electric by 2020 is proposed, which will be increase 
to 5% going forward to 2025.  To achieve this target the key measures will be: 

 Establish reduced charges for electric and low emission vehicles in Council owned parking 

areas. 

                                                      
2 ECOSTARS is an environmental fleet recognition scheme – for more details see http://www.ecostars-uk.com 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



 A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire 

 

 

 
 9 Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

   

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

 Develop a wider network of fast and rapid charging points focusing on: 

o Council owned premises and parking locations 

o Key retail sites 

o Business parks – particularly those in the Science Vale 

o Didcot railway station 

 Work with local businesses to encourage the uptake of electric vehicles and supporting 

infrastructure, with key targets being: 

o Taxi firms 

o Local delivery companies 

o Car clubs 

o Council vehicles 

 Require availability of vehicle charging infrastructure in new developments through the 

planning system. 

 Use the Council’s procurement powers to encourage local suppliers to adopt electric or low 

emission vehicles. 

3.3 A low emission freight strategy 
Freight emissions, covering both vans and HGVs, are an important element of the transport emissions 
across the district and within in all of the AQMAs, especially Watlington.  At the district level our focus 
is to work with the freight industry to try and manage freight movement more effectively to reduce its 
impacts.  The key measures that will be developed at the district level are: 

 An HGV eco-driving and anti-idling campaign – to help improve efficiency and reduce fuel 
costs.  This will be developed working with the County and targeted partnership working with 
the freight industry.  In addition the potential for an ‘Ecostars’ type freight accreditation 
programme will be explored. 

 Delivery and Service Plans (DSPs) and Construction Logistics Plans (CLPs) – can be used to 
help reduce freight deliveries to key sites and organisations in the district.  Working with the 
County and economic development partners we will explore the best way to engage with 
organisations to deliver DSPs. 

 Freight journey planning –County is signed up to the national Freight Gateway system, which 
should become operational in Oxfordshire this autumn.  This provides information on 
environmentally sensitive areas in the National Freight Journey Planner which feeds into lorry 
specific satnavs and commercial logistics programmes to influence route choices accordingly.  
We will work with them to ensure that areas of poor air quality are recognised in this work. 

In addition, the District will work with the County and Oxford City Council on developing ideas around 
freight consolidation.  This will be done in terms of the potential for consolidation of goods deliveries to 
towns such as Didcot and Wallingford, but also in terms of the overall impact of freight movements 
across the district accessing such a consolidation centre. 

There is a particular issue in terms of freight movement and air quality in Watlington.  This is caused by 
freight using this village as a route to the M40 and is exacerbated by infringement of the 7.5t weight 
limit.  There is the possibility of a village by-pass as part of a wider housing development scheme in the 
village.  However, in the short term we will also work with the County to explore: 

 A freight ‘clearway’ – which would remove on-street parking areas on Couching and Shirburn 

Streets that are causing blockages and congestion for both goods vehicles and cars.  This 

would ease the flow of vehicles helping to reduce emissions from queuing traffic.  This 

approach has also been supported by a recent traffic study of the village in support of the 

neighbourhood plan.   

 Increased enforcement of the 7.5t limit – as there is data to suggest the limit is not being 

adhered to and adding to congestion and pollution.  A combination of better signage and 

enforcement methods such as ANPR will be explored with Watlington Town Council. 

Page 22

Agenda Item 6



 A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire 

 

 

 
 10 Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

   

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

3.4 A low emission bus strategy 
Although buses are not a major source of transport emissions across the district as a whole they can 
be important in the AQMA’s, especially in Wallingford.  They are also a very visible element of the public 
transport system and one that we are seeking to promote to reduce car use.  Therefore supporting the 
development a low emission bus fleet is an important element of the emission reduction strategy.  The 
key measures that will be pursued at the district level are: 

 A voluntary Euro IV emission standard for all buses operating in the district.  This will be 

developed working through the bus quality partnership with support from the County Council. 

 Supporting eco driving and anti-idling with bus operators again working through the bus 

quality partnership, but with complementary signage for anti-idling at key locations.  The work 

on signage will be developed with the County Council. 

In addition we will explore options for bus only use of the Wallingford Bridge to ease congestion and 
queuing at the traffic lights in the High Street on the bridge approach, which is giving rise to high levels 
of pollution in a confined environment.  The existing ring road provides an alternative for other traffic 
currently using this bridge.   

Figure 6: The narrow High Street in Wallingford 

 

3.5 Planning and procurement 

3.5.1 Planning 

The use of development planning policy is a key lever that the council can use in terms of driving a long 
term vision of reducing emissions from transport.  The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
sets out the national policy on the air quality impact from new developments. The NPPF places a 
presumption in favour of sustainable development, stressing the importance of local development plans 
and states: 

“Planning policies should sustain compliance with and contribute towards EU limit 
values or national objectives for pollutants, taking into account the presence of Air 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



 A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire 

 

 

 
 11 Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

   

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

Quality Management Areas and the cumulative impacts on air quality from individual 
sites in local areas. Planning decisions should ensure that any new development in Air 
Quality Management Areas is consistent with local air quality action plans (and 
strategies)”. 

The Council is in the process of developing a new Local Plan for South Oxfordshire looking forward to 
2031.  The Local Plan looks at the key aspirations for the area including economic development and 
housing needs.  Within this plan we need to account for the transport activity related to development in 
the district and its impact on air pollution and climate change.  Within this plan we will: 

 Set out our understanding of the current air quality and climate change issues in the district 

including the current air quality management areas;  

 Assess how our aspirations for development may impact on these issues and the potential for 

worsening air quality in other areas; and 

 Consider measures that will help reduce emissions from transport and support the actions set 

out in this Low Emission Strategy. 

In addition we will work with local communities through their Neighbourhood Plans to explore community 
level solutions especially in areas already subject to Air Quality Management Areas.  Many local 
communities are already keenly aware of these issues and exploring actions in their Neighbourhood 
Plans.  The Joint Henley and Harpsden Neighbourhood Plan (JHHNP) is a good example of this and 
makes extensive reference to air quality as a key issue and supports the measures we are developing 
in this LES. 

We have already developed guidance for developers on how we expect them to assess and manage 
the transport emissions for proposed new developments.  This guidance is part of our Air Quality Action 
Plan and promotes: 

 Travel plans for new development to reduce vehicle movements 

 Investment in cycling and walking infrastructure 

 Support for public transport 

 Use of low emission vehicles 

 Investment in electric vehicle recharging infrastructure 

3.5.2 Low emission procurement 

Public authorities are responsible for an annual spend of over £230bn in the UK.  The UK Government 
and Local Government bodies have identified the significant role that public sector procurement can 
have in securing environmental improvements, particularly in relation to vehicle emissions, and 
assisting the accelerated transition to a low carbon economy. Appropriate procurement strategies can 
help stimulate economic development, encourage innovation and improve air quality. The Public 
Services (Social Value) Act 2012 places a requirement on commissioners to consider the economic, 
environmental and social benefits of their approaches to procurement before the process starts.  

In addition the Council has a duty to promote the use of Low Emission Vehicles in its operations under 
the Cleaner Road Transport Regulations (2011).  Working with our partner authority the Vale of the 
White Horse we will work to promote the use of low emission vehicle in our own fleet and within the 
transport services we purchase.   This will be done by considering: 

 Setting technical specifications for energy and environmental performance in the 

documentation for the procurement of vehicles and transport services; 

 Including energy and environmental impacts in the purchasing decision by using energy and 

environmental impacts as award criteria as part of a procurement procedure; and 

 Including energy and environmental impacts in the purchasing decision by monetising them in 

accordance with set methodologies.    

Under our powers with respect to the Social Values Act we will also consider the transport emissions 
impact of wider service procurement.  In particular we will look to encourage the use of low emission 

Page 24

Agenda Item 6



 A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire 

 

 

 
 12 Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

   

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

vehicles, eco-driving and anti-idling policies for businesses providing services to the Council.  This may 
be through aware criteria or standards within our procurement processes.   

A guide to low emissions procurement has been developed to support our procurement team. 

 

4 The impact of the Low Emission Strategy 

4.1 Emission benefits 

4.1.1 Impacts across the district 

The LES has measures that impact across the whole of the district and some that are specific to the air 
quality management areas.  The estimated impact of the key LES measures on emissions at district 
level is shown in Figure 7 below. 

Figure 7: Emissions impact of the LES at the district level 

 

The chart shows the potential impact of the measures in 2015 against a business as usual baseline in 
2015.  Overall the LES package is expected to reduce emissions across the district by about 4.5% for 
CO2 and NOx and about 3.5% for PM.  The greatest impact is for the behaviour change measures that 
reduce overall traffic levels.   

Overall the reductions in emissions are not large, but they are a starting point and will contribute to 
reducing pollution across the district. 

4.1.2 Impacts in the AQMAs 

As well as the measures that impact across the district there are some additional measures targeted 
just at the areas of worst pollution in the AQMAs.  The impact on emissions of the district wide measures 
and the additional local measures for each of the AQMAs are shown below. 

 

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



 A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire 

 

 

 
 13 Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

   

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

Figure 8: Impact of the LES in the AQMAs 

 

 

Page 26

Agenda Item 6



 A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire 

 

 

 
 14 Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

   

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

 

 

In Henley no additional measures are included in the LES and so the impact is similar to that of the 
district as a whole with emissions reduced by between 4-5%.  In Wallingford the key local measure 
included in the LES is the bus only use of the Wallingford Bridge river crossing.  This has a much greater 
affect in the town than the district wide measures reducing emissions by some 12%, with the overall 
package reducing emissions by 16%.  In Watlington two local measures are included which are the 
freight ‘clearway’ and better enforcement of the 7.5t weight limit.  These two measures have a significant 
impact on local emissions with the whole LES package reducing NOx emissions by some 35%, CO2 by 
30% and PM by about 15%. 

In terms of pollution concentrations and air quality limits these measure will have some success.  In 
Henley most areas are expected to comply with the NO2 limits except for Duke Street which will remain 
a problem beyond 2020.  In Wallingford the picture is similar with some problems remaining on the High 
Street, but these should be resolved by 2020.  In Watlington the impact of the LES package will be to 
remove all areas where the limits are exceeded from 2015. 

4.2 Economic assessment  
The cost of each of the measures in the LES has been estimated along with a valuation of the emissions 
benefits. This was assessed over a 10 year period from 2016 to 2025 to give an overall net present 
value (NPV) for the measures and a benefit cost ratio (BCR) as shown in Table 1 below.   

The most economically efficient measures are the bus and HGV eco driving schemes benefiting from 
fuel costs savings.  The EV scheme is also cost effective again benefiting from fuel cost savings of 
electricity vs petrol/diesel.  More locally the freight ‘clearway’ scheme in Watlington shows a positive 
economic benefit being easy to implement and generating good emissions benefits.   

The other measures do not have a positive economic benefit.  However, when combined in a package 
the overall LES does have a positive economic benefit with a BCR of over 2.  This supports the package 
approach that has been taken with the LES. 

 

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



 A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire 

 

 

 
 15 Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

   

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

Table 1: Economic assessment of the LES measures 

Scenario 

Total PV 
benefits 
2016 – 
2025 
(£millions) 

Total PV 
cost 2016 
– 2025 
(£millions) 

NPV 
(£millions) 

Rank 
(NPV) 

Benefit 
Cost 
Ratio 

Rank 
(BCR) 

Area measures 

Behaviour change 2.37 5.72 -3.35 10 0.41 8 

EV strategy 1.41 0.38 1.02 4 3.68 3 

Bus Euro IV 0.29 0.50 -0.20 7 0.59 7 

Bus Eco-driving 0.84 0.04 0.81 5 22.24 2 

HGV Eco-driving 13.86 0.50 13.36 1 27.76 1 

AQMA measures 

Wallingford Bus Crossing 0.09 0.79 -0.70 8 0.12 9 

Watlington HGV 
Clearway 

0.20 0.14 0.06 6 1.44 6 

Watlington HGV 7.5t 
enforcement 

0.07 0.87 -0.80 9 0.08 10 

Combined 

Area LES 18.77 7.13 11.64 2 2.63 4 

Area LES plus AQMA 19.13 8.93 10.20 3 2.14 5 

 

  

Page 28

Agenda Item 6



 A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire 

 

 

 
 16 Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

   

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

5 Taking the LES forward 

5.1 A partnership approach 
In delivering the LES the Council will work with a range of partners as indicated in Table 2 below.  Since 
the LES is focused on transport measures, the highways authority: Oxfordshire County Council, is a 
key partner.  They will take a lead role in the behaviour change work building on existing experience 
from Oxford and Didcot.  In terms of the behaviour change element of the LES the Council will also be 
looking to work with local community groups, to access local engagement, and the Health and Wellbeing 
Board to support their initiatives on active travel. 

Table 2: Delivery partners for the LES 

Measure SODC 
Oxfordshire 

County 

Health and 
Wellbeing 
Board 

Vale of the 
White 
Horse 

Local 
Groups 

Transport 
Operators 

Low emission 
behaviours 

      

EV strategy       

Freight 
strategy 

      

Bus strategy       

Planning and 
procurement 

      

 

The County Council will also have an important role to play in the bus and freight strategies, primarily 
through the management of the bus quality partnership and targeted partnership working with the freight 
industry, but also through ongoing work in managing freight and public transport activity in the County.  
Clearly in taking forward these strategies it will also be important work directly with the local transport 
operators such as Thames Transit. 

In relation to the electric vehicle strategy the Council will take the lead supported by our partners.  We 
will work collaboratively with the Vale of the White Horse in taking a co-ordinated approach to the 
support of EV’s, especially across the Science Vale.  We will also look for opportunities of joint working 
with the County Council and in terms of engagement we will work with local community groups and 
transport operators. 

The development of our planning and procurement policy will be an important support measure ensuring 
a long term approach to the LES.  These policies will be developed jointly with our partner authority the 
Vale of the White Horse. 

5.2 Funding opportunities  
Funding for the LES measures will be crucial to the success of the strategy.  There are a range of 
funding opportunities that the Council will purse as summarised in Table 3 below.   

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



 A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire 

 

 

 
 17 Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

   

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

 

Table 3: Funding sources for the LES measures 

Measure OLEV Transport 
Public 
Health 

Planning Development 
Grants 

(AQ/EU) 

Low emission 
behaviours 

   
 

Conditions 
  

EV strategy    
 

S106 

 

LEP 
 

Freight 
strategy 

   
 

S106 

 

LEP 
 

Bus strategy       

Planning and 
procurement 

      

 

5.2.1 Office of Low Emission Vehicles (OLEV) 

OLEV has announced £500m of new funding for low emission vehicles from 2015 to 2020. The 
programme details are yet to be worked out but the funding is expected to cover: 

 £200m to continue support for the purchase of electric and plug-in electric cars with a grant of 
up to £5,000. 

 £30m to support electric vans up to 3.5 tonnes and may be made available to other ultra-low 
emission vehicles (ULEV) such as quadricycles and 2 –wheelers. 

 £32m for the deployment of rapid electric vehicle charging infrastructure. 
 £20m to local authorities to support the uptake of ULEV taxis. 
 £30m for the purchase of low emission buses. This programme will replace the Green Bus 

Fund.  
 £4m will be made available for gas infrastructure to support the switch to gas HGVs. 
 £35m for local authorities and communities to apply for ‘Low Emission City’ status, aimed at 

making a step change in the deployment of low and ultra-low emission vehicles in 2 to 4 cities.  

The Council will explore all these opportunities for support with our partners. 

5.2.2 Transport funding 

The County Council is responsible for the main streams of transport funding as the highways authority 
and we will work with them to help access relevant funds to support the LES.  The key elements of 
transport funding are: 

 The Local Transport Plan (LTP) – which provides the overall strategy for transport investment 

in the County.  The County is currently developing and consulting on LTP 4 and we will work 

with them to ensure that the aspirations set out in the LES are considered in the LTP. 

 Local Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF) – is central government funding focused on 

improving the sustainability of transport systems in towns and cities.  Some ongoing funding 

is already being used for behaviour change work in Didcot. 

5.2.3 Public health funding 

The County’s Health and Wellbeing Board targets funding to support positive health outcomes.  The 
board is already working with the County transport team to support increased levels of walking and 

Page 30

Agenda Item 6



 A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire 

 

 

 
 18 Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

   

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

cycling to contribute to health outcomes.  Working jointly with both of these partners we will seek to 
jointly resource behaviour change work to achieve health outcomes relating to both active travel and 
improved air quality. 

5.2.4 Planning gain 

New developments should support measures to mitigate the impacts of the development including those 
related to transport.  The key planning mechanisms that can be used to generate and target these 
resources are: 

 Section 106 Agreements which allow for contributions to be made for measures that may 

make a scheme acceptable in planning terms. The National Planning Practice Guidance 

states that Section 106 contributions may be used to off-set the pollution impact of a scheme 

through the funding of measures contained in an Air Quality Action Plan or Low Emission 

Strategy.  

 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) allows a developer funding contributions to a defined list 

of local infrastructure projects.  The Council is currently looking at potential CIL contributions 

and the list of potential projects for this funding.  As part of this we will consider inclusion of 

infrastructure measures in the LES such as EV charging. 

5.2.5 Economic development funds 

The Strategic Economic Plan for Oxfordshire (SEP) developed by the Local Enterprise Partnership 
(LEP) provides the focus for Regional Growth Funds.  This funding is now linked to wider transport 
objectives in the County that support this economic growth.  A focus of the economic development in 
the County is the Science Vale enterprise zone, which is part of South Oxfordshire. 

We will work with the LEP to identify opportunities where LES measures can support both the SEP 
economic objectives and the LES air quality and climate objectives.  In particular we will explore 
opportunities for the use of low emission transport technologies in the Science Vale, and more widely 
across South Oxfordshire, and the added value economic benefit this can bring. 

5.2.6 Grant and other funding sources 

Government grant funding such as DEFRA’s Air Quality Grants provide opportunities to fund projects.  
We will track these opportunities and exploit them as appropriate.  There are also potential opportunities 
for European Commission funding through programmes such as Horizon 2020 and the Life Environment 
programme.  These opportunities will be explored jointly with our partners.  We will also look at the 
potential for private public partnerships where we can lever in additional private sector funding to 
develop initiatives that have a direct commercial benefit.   

 

  

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



 A Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire 

 

 

 
 19 Ricardo in Confidence Ref: Ricardo/ED58208/Issue Number 2

   

Ricardo Energy & Environment 

Glossary 

AQMAs – Air Quality Management Areas 

BCR – Benefit Cost Ratio 

CCC – Committee on Climate Change 

CIL – Community Infrastructure Levy 

CLP – Construction Logistics Plans 

CO2 – Carbon dioxide 

DEFRA – Department for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs 

DSP – Delivery and Service Plans 

EV – Electric Vehicles 

HGVs – Heavy Goods Vehicles 

JHHNP – Joint Henley and Harpsden Neighbourhood Plan 

LAQM – Local Air Quality Management 

LES - Low Emissions Strategy 

LESP – Low Emissions Strategies Partnership 

LSTF – Local Sustainable Transport Fund 

LTP – Local Transport Plan 

NO2 – Nitrogen oxides 

NPPF – National Planning Policy Framework 

NPV - Net Present Value 

PM – Particulate matter 

PM10 – Particulate matter up to 10 micrometres in size 

PM2.5 – Particulate matter up to 2.5 micrometres in size 

UKAQS – UK Air Quality Strategy 

ULEV – Ultra Low Emissions Vehicle 

Page 32

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

The Gemini Building  
Fermi Avenue 
Harwell 
Didcot 
Oxfordshire 
OX11 0QR 
United Kingdom 

t: +44 (0)1235 753000 
e: enquiry@ricardo.com 
 

ee.ricardo.com Page 33

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Low Emissions Strategy 2016  

CONSULTATION SUMMARY 

Summary of a consultation which asked for views on proposals to tackle 

the problem of vehicle emissions in South Oxfordshire   

  

JULY 2016  

  

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) ii 

CONTENTS 

 
SUMMARY 1 

BACKGROUND TO THE CONSULTATION 2 

CONSULTATION METHODOLOGY 3 

CONSULTATION RESPONSES 4 

HOW WE HAVE USED RESULTS OF THE CONSULTATION 26 

FURTHER INFORMATION 27 

 

APPENDIX A 28 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 1 

SUMMARY 

This report summarises a consultation undertaken by South Oxfordshire District 
Council which asked for views on proposals to tackle the problem of vehicle emissions 
in the district.   

The proposals were intended to help the council improve air quality in the district and 
meet commitments for managing high levels of air pollution previously identified in the 
towns of Henley, Watlington and Wallingford. 

A draft strategy outlining the proposals was published on the council’s website on 1 
February 2016. The draft strategy was promoted widely and members of the public were 
encouraged to comment on it by completing an online survey or a paper form made 
available on request.  The consultation ran for nearly two months to 29 March. 

217 people responded to the consultation. 

The consultation found that: 

 There was majority support for all of the proposals 

 The proposal to encourage drivers to turn vehicle engines off when stationary 
attracted many supportive comments, although some were sceptical about its 
impact or practicality for drivers of older cars 

 Many respondents thought more could be done to promote alternatives to car 
use  

 There were mixed feelings about the strategy’s proposal to increase the use of 
electric cars.  Whilst many felt this was a desirable outcome, there were 
concerns about the provision of charging stations and limitations of existing 
technology 

 Some concerns were raised over proposals to restrict vehicular access to the 
bridge in Wallingford and also the removal of on-street parking in parts of 
Watlington 

 Eleven people complained there were no specific measures proposed for 
Henley  

Council officers have reviewed feedback from the consultation and made responses 
throughout this report.  The strategy is recommended to councillors for adoption as 
council policy.   

  

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 2 

BACKGROUND TO THE CONSULTATION 

In 2015 South Oxford District Council adopted an Air Quality Action Plan which set out how we 
would seek to address known air quality problems in Henley, Wallingford and Watlington 
designated as Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA’s).  Further information on the outcomes 
of this original plan can be found on our website: https://oxfordshire.air-quality.info/local-air-
quality-management/south-oxfordshire 
 
One of the recommendations of the Air Quality Action Plan was to put together a more detailed 
Low Emission Strategy (LES) that would look at what low emission measures realistically could 
be implemented to improve air quality in each of the AQMAs, but also the district as a whole. 
Previously low emission strategies have been focused in large cities so it was important to 
carry out detailed modelling to investigate what might work in a more rural setting. 
 
After a successful government bid to DEFRA, the council commissioned environmental experts 
Ricardo-AEA to undertake feasibility studies and prepare the strategy.  
 
The experts recommended the council consider five broad policies for improving air quality in 
the district as well as three specific actions that could be taken in Wallingford and Watlington. 
These incorporated some earlier proposals made in the original Air Quality Action Plan with 
new proposals for Wallingford and Watlington.  As a result of the modelling of the low emission 
measures, additional actions were considered unviable for Henley as the results highlighted 
any potential improvements to air quality would be negligible. 
 
We consulted on the strategy between February and March 2016 to see whether residents 
supported the proposals made by the experts.  This consultation summary provides an account 
of the feedback we received, as well as our responses to the main comments, issues and 
suggestions raised.  
 
 
 
  

Page 38

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 3 

CONSULTATION METHODOLOGY 

The draft Low Emissions Strategy was published on the council’s website on 1 February 2016.  
We sought to draw this to the attention of residents using press releases, social media and 
dedicated correspondence sent to people who’d previously registered an interest in council 
consultations.  We also contacted groups in the Henley, Wallingford and Watlington who we 
thought would have an interest in the actions being proposed.   

To consult people on the draft strategy we set up an online survey.  The survey asked 
respondents how much they supported each proposal and if they had any specific comments 
to make.  A copy of the question wording used is shown in Appendix A.   

To ensure the consultation was accessible to people who might have found it difficult to 
complete the online survey we made paper forms available on request. 

The consultation lasted for nearly two months and closed for public comment on 29 March. 
During the consultation period, council officers met with members from Wallingford and 
Watlington town councils to listen to their comments.  

To make sense of the feedback received, we employed two types of analysis.  In the first 
instance we looked at the headline quantitative measures of agreement with each of the 
strategy’s proposals. This was followed by coding of the free text comments to help understand 
the sentiment behind respondents’ agreement or disagreement with each of the policies.  The 
codes we generated identified frequently mentioned ideas, suggestions and issues.  The 
findings of the consultation are set out in the next section of this report.  

The consultation was conducted in full compliance with the council’s Customer Engagement 
Charter1 which sets out our commitments for work of this nature.   

  

                                            
1 http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/about-us/have-your-say/our-commitments-engaging-customers  

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 4 

CONSULTATION RESPONSES  

217 people and organisations responded to the survey.  This excludes 4 responses which 
were removed as they appeared to be duplicate responses. 

Responses shown in this section are presented anonymously except where they were made 
on behalf of a group or organisation.  We have responded to most comments and these are 
shown in the text boxes.  

Overall agreement with proposals 

To provide a top line indication of support for the draft strategy, we asked respondents to tell 
us the extent to which they supported each of the proposed policies.  Most respondents 
provided this information.   

We found that most respondents either strongly agreed or agreed with all proposals made in 
the draft strategy (Figure 1). 

  

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Reducing the impact new developments
have on air quality (194)

More enforcement of the 7.5 tonne weight
limit in Watlington (191)

Reducing emissions from HGVs and vans
(197)

Reducing bus emissions (195)

Helping people reduce emissions from
vehicles (197)

Supporting the use of electric and low
emission vehicles (196)

Restrict access to the bridge over
Wallingford to some vehicles at certain…

Improving the flow of traffic through
Watlington (192)

Reducing
the impact

new
developm
ents have

on air
quality
(194)

More
enforceme

nt of the
7.5 tonne

weight
limit in

Watlington
(191)

Reducing
emissions

from
HGVs and
vans (197)

Reducing
bus

emissions
(195)

Helping
people
reduce

emissions
from

vehicles
(197)

Supporting
the use of

electric
and low
emission
vehicles

(196)

Restrict
access to
the bridge

over
Wallingfor
d to some
vehicles at

certain
times
(192)

Improving
the flow of

traffic
through

Watlington
(192)

Strongly agree 123 114 113 109 99 73 67 65

Agree 50 43 60 64 60 60 47 52

Neither agree nor disagree 13 20 11 12 18 35 27 24

Disagree 2 2 4 3 7 15 13 19

Strongly disagree 3 4 5 3 10 9 24 21

Don't know 1 5 1 1 0 1 11 8

Agreement - all proposals 

Page 40

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 5 

Reducing the impact new developments have on air quality had the greatest level of support 
(64 per cent agreed with the proposal), followed by more enforcement of the 7.5 tonne weight 
limit in Watlington (61 per cent) and measures to reduce emissions from HGVs and vans (58 
per cent).   

Improving the flow of traffic through Watlington and restricting vehicular access to the bridge in 
Wallingford were more controversial.  About one in five respondents said they disagreed or 
strongly disagreed with these proposals.  Further analysis shows that of the 44 respondents 
who said they lived in Watlington, 25 disagreed with the proposal to improve traffic flow 
through their town suggesting that resistance to this proposal is higher amongst residents.  

Detailed comments  

Respondents were also asked if they had any further comments or suggestions to make on the 
strategy generally, and in relation to each policy.  The information provided below picks up on 
the key themes that ran throughout these free text comments.  We have reported on the most 
common themes which are shaded in grey and provided an officer response where 
appropriate.  

GENERAL REMARKS ABOUT THE STRATEGY 

We asked people if they had any general comments to make about the draft strategy as a 
whole.  The most frequently made remarks not related to specific proposals were; support for 
the strategy, concerns that there were no specific proposals made to address air quality in 
Henley and a view that sustaining and improving bus services will also help to reduce vehicle 
emissions in the district.     

  

Support for strategy 

Eleven people made comments in support of having a low emissions strategy for South 
Oxfordshire.  These people welcomed measures that could be taken to improve air quality in 
the district.  

It is very good that attention is being paid to this issue, and that an attempt is 
being made to evaluate the impact of various options (77) 

I am aware that this is an important issue. Air pollution kills many times more 
people than for example road accidents. Yet, perhaps because the deaths are 
harder to attribute, it has not received much political attention. It is good to see 
South Oxfordshire starting to think about this (199) 

However, there was some scepticism that the strategy would be enough to resolve the 
problem. 

Comment type Frequency 

Support for strategy  11 

No plans for Henley 11 

Maintain bus services 10 

Air pollution evidence  9 

Diesel vehicles 7 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 6 

Yes you definitely need to do something about it, but I'm not sure the 
suggestions thus far go far enough to resolve the problems (172) 

 

No plans for Henley 
There were also complaints that the draft strategy did not include specific proposals to address 
known air quality problems in Henley.  

Extremely disappointed that Henley does not have any specific measures (158) 

Ridiculous that experts cannot provide any resolutions to the EXTREME 
conditions that prevail in Henley-on-Thames. Something needs to be done 
urgently as these appalling conditions have existed for far too long (121) 

Leaving out Henley from plans for remedial action because the situation is too 
difficult to ameliorate in the short term is an abrogation of responsibility. The 
very fact that Henley's air pollution problems seem intractable means that it 
should be given urgent attention (135) 

 

Maintain bus services 

A number of people said that they were worried about cuts to bus services as this would 
increase the use of cars and result in more vehicle emissions.  

If our bus services are cut/curtailed more cars will be used i.e. more emissions 
(149) 

I live in a place where the nearest bus stop is more than a mile away and the 
bus route (Wallingford to Henley) is due to close. This means I have to use my 
car for every journey and in most cases this means a trip into Wallingford. This 
means I am contributing to air pollution more than I would like (129) 

 

Air pollution evidence 

There were also a few comments that made reference to the evidence use to justify the draft 
strategy.  Specifically, several people challenged the phrasing of the consultation that vehicle 
emissions “could” damage health.   

In the introduction, it states: 'vehicle emissions could damage health.' This is 
weak, as they definitely DO damage health (58) 

We welcome support for the plan and highlight the proposals were based on scientific 
modelling which indicated they would be effective in reducing air pollution.  

The feasibility study undertaken by Ricardo-AEA highlighted that low emission bus or HGV 
measures would not have a significant impact on air quality in Henley and there were no 
viable rerouting options for traffic.  Therefore no settlement specific measures were 
proposed in the strategy. We think the five general measures will have a positive impact on 
Henley as will the remaining measures in the air quality action plan. We want to stress that 
the low emission strategy is just one of the many actions laid out in the air quality action 
plan to help improve air quality.  

This is an Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) function, however we will raise this issue with 
them drawing on the comments made and show our support for local bus services.  

Page 42

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 7 

You say "vehicle emissions could damage health". We know that vehicle 
emissions do damage health, so let's not pretend otherwise. (107) 

 

Diesel vehicles  

A few people pointed out that diesel vehicles release more particulates into the air which 
causes a risk to health.  They felt the strategy could do more to address this.  

Diesel vehicles have to be restricted especially now that, given Kings College 
data, there is an impact on drivers in vehicles following diesel as well as 
pedestrians. Many cities have announced a strategy to ban diesel in the future 
(47) 

Particulates are mostly caused by diesel engines, HGVs and cars. I cannot 
understand why this isn’t already stated in order to get the HGV companies, 
Bus companies and […] people to think about their next purchase (96) 

 

BEHAVIOUR CHANGE COMMENTS  

We asked for views on campaigns to get people turning off their engines when stationary and 
also encouraging alternatives to car use. The distribution of comments is shown in the table 
below.  

 Comment type Frequency 

Turning off engines when stationary 56 

Alternatives to car use 24 

- Use of buses  26 

- Cycling  23 

- Walking 12 

Restrict vehicle access to town centres 10 

No confidence in proposals 10 

Enforcement of proposals  7 

Reduce speed limit in town centres 6 

Park and ride into towns  5 

Pedestrianisation 2 

 

Turning engines off when stationary 

Over 50 people made comments about turning vehicle engines off when stationary.  It seems 
this was a proposal that most people could relate to.  Many comments were supportive on the 
basis that encouraging this behaviour change could be a quick win in towns where traffic builds 
up.     

The council is aware of the health effects of air pollution which is why this strategy and the 
air quality action plan were produced.  

Central Government is aware of the problems of diesel vehicles and there will be stricter 
emission limits in the future. Restricting diesel vehicles is not viable in small rural market 
towns as we do not have the transport infrastructure to support it. 

Page 43

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 8 

Getting people to switch off their engines when stopped at traffic lights or in 
traffic queues would be a quick and simple win (114) 

Switching off engines costs no-one anything, in fact saving money. So a few 
well-placed signs might make a difference (199) 

A suggestion mentioned a few times was having countdown timers at traffic lights where cars 
are stationary for longer periods of time.  It was believed this would remind drivers to turn their 
engines off.  

At Wallingford in the centre, the waiting time is quite long. There could be a 
digital display saying how long before the next green light (123) 

A simple sign at the traffic lights to remind people to switch off. Perhaps add 
how long the lights stay red for - so drivers know it is worth it (163) 

 

That said, not everyone was in favour of the proposal.  For example, some people pointed out 
that whilst modern cars are designed with stop start assistance, switching engines on and off in 
older cars may not save emissions or result in cars stalling and adding to traffic congestion.    

It will be major change in the way people use their cars: many will not want to 
turn engines off in case they can't get started, or because they think it will cause 
delays (162) 

 

Alternatives to car use (including bus services, cycling and walking) 

Most comments were supportive of the strategy’s proposal to promote alternatives to car use.  
There were frequent mentions of having a good bus service as well as a network of cycling and 
walking routes to make this viable.      

You can only discourage people from using cars if there is a suitable alternative, 
e.g. good reliable public transport (24) 

As an alternative to cars, walking, cycling and public transport should be 
encouraged. Local walking and cycling groups may be happy to help with this. 
As will the bus and rail companies. Often these work best in combination - e.g. 
cycling to the bus stop (199) 

We need reliable alternatives to driving: regular bus services, […] safe cycle 
routes. We also need well-lit level footpaths […] from edge-of-town residential 
areas. We could consider too park and ride services and bikes for hire (58) 

 

However, a number of respondents expressed concern with recent announcements by 
Oxfordshire County Council that it will reduce subsidies for bus services.  They felt this 
conflicted with the aspiration of this proposal. 

Use of alternatives to cars is not helped by OCC reducing bus services (67) 

The cuts in rural bus services that will come into force from June conflict directly 
with the need to get people out of their cars and into alternatives to individual 

We are pleased that proposals encouraging people to switch off car engines were widely 
supported. 

Page 44

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 9 

car trips. This is not an SODC responsibility but highlights the need for joined up 
thinking by District and County Councils (170) 

 

Some people also pointed out that alternative forms of transport are not always practical 

I would love to give up my daily car run from Abingdon to Oxford, return. But the 
lack of safe cycling routes puts me off as I would have a 2-year old on the bike 
too. I need a 100% traffic free cycle route to feel safe when taking my 2-year 
old. Because there are 3 of us traveling every day it's cheaper and much 
quicker to use the car rather than the bus (146) 

 

Restricting vehicular access to town centres 

A handful of people felt that the strategy should also aim to discourage people from driving 
through town centres in the first place.   

Reducing the number of cars and other vehicles in town would be much the 
best idea (113) 

When you are sat in a car it is very difficult to see / understand the impact you 
are having on the street you are stop in, as most people want to get to where 
they are going quickly. Best option is to not let them in there in the first place 
(17) 

Specific suggestions included the introduction of 20 mph speed limits and limiting access to 
electric vehicles only  

A better approach would be to remove traffic queues (or better still traffic) in the 
South Oxfordshire town centres as not all drivers (in fact probably very few) will 
switch off their engines when stationary. This could be achieved by 20mph 
speed limits throughout the towns to discourage through traffic (59) 

Restricting access to allow only electric vehicles would solve the problem 
straight away (73)  

 

No confidence in proposals 

About ten people felt actions encouraging behaviour change would have little impact. 

People won't change their current practices (197) 

We are working with OCC to improve and promote alternatives to the car and the 
behavioural change proposal along with actions in our action plan are aimed at delivering 
this.  

Due to local concerns over economic viability in the small towns within South Oxfordshire 
and the cost of enforcement, we would not look to restrict vehicle access to the towns at 
this time.  Simply reducing speed limits through town centres does not always have the 
effect of reducing air pollution and with the issue in our three AQMA’s being down to 
congestion it is unusual that vehicles even reach the current speed limits. Park and ride into 
the towns is a proposal we explored in the production of our air quality action plan, this is an 
OCC function and they stated that the idea would not be economically viable. 

Page 45

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 10 

ELECTRIC VEHICLE COMMENTS 

The draft strategy’s proposal to promote the use of electric vehicles split opinions.  Some 
people seemed to support this whilst others doubted whether this kind of action would be 
practical or viable.  As such, the majority of comments related to the need for charging 
stations, the cost of electric vehicles, the limitations of current technology and examples of 
where use of electric cars may or may not be appropriate.   

Comment type  Frequency 

Charging stations  23 

Too expensive  23 

Electric vehicle limitations  20 

Electric or hybrid taxis and buses  19 

No confidence in proposals 12 

Urban/ rural considerations  11 

Incentives 8 

Subsidised parking for electric vehicles 5 

EVs rely on dirty energy/ need to be fuelled by renewable sources  5 

Electric car clubs  4 

Council electric pool cars 3 

Support for proposals  3 

Proposals do not go far enough 2 

Should be planning condition to support EVs 2 

Electric vehicle only routes 2 

Other vehicle technology 2 

Reduce car use  2 

 

Charging stations 

One of the most frequently made comments was about the need for sufficient charging electric 
stations.  Many people thought these should be provided in council car parks. 

There needs to be very many more charging points throughout the county (171) 

I'd like SODC to ensure there is a charging point for electric cars in every public 
car park with more than 20 spaces (71) 

We'd need charging points in all the carparks, and what about the street-side 
charging points that Oxford are putting in? (70) 

A few of these people suggested that parking for electric cars should also be subsidised to 
encourage greater use. 

Provide reduced rate parking and charge points (148) 

One person stressed that charging points should be supplied with energy from renewable 
sources 

Adequate points will be required to charge these vehicles. Provided by 
sustainable power (176) 

In contrast, a couple of people questioned whether there would be space to accommodate 
charging points in towns, or whether local traffic would need them at all. 

In principal a good idea, but there are far too few parking spaces in Wallingford 
already, so allocating some for charging is not realistic. 

Page 46

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 11 

Local traffic will not need charging stations and through traffic will not use them 
(11) 

 

Too expensive 

The main concern, expressed by 23 respondents was the cost of electric cars.  In the first 
instance, some people felt the cost of electric cars means they are beyond the reach of most 
people.  

Most people cannot afford these cars (37) 

This would discriminate against those who can't afford new cars (106) 

I would love to change my car for an electric car but the price is well out of my 
range. I am planning on buying a new car now and just can't afford the electric 
range. Further financial incentives are needed. I would get one in an instant if I 
could afford to (146) 

Respondents were also concerned that it would be expensive for the council to provide the 
necessary infrastructure (i.e. charging stations). 

But who is going to pick up the cost of installing this capability? (26) 

I would suggest that this is a high investment strategy, both for the council in 
installing sufficient charging points, and in terms of people buying new vehicles. 
For this reason, while electric technology can be promoted, this should not be a 
mainstay of the strategy (77) 

 

 

Electric vehicle limitations (especially in rural areas)  

Some respondents also felt that electric car technology isn’t developed enough to make it a 
practical and viable mode of transport.  Almost all concerns related to the availability of 
charging points and the range of vehicles.  

Electric cars have too limited a range at the moment, along with very few "re-
charging" stations (125) 

SODC have already agreed the first two council funded charging points in car parks, works 
to install these in appropriate locations are currently underway, parking whilst charging will 
be made free.  

SODC also require the installations of EV charging points on many new developments.  

We are committed to ensure the roll out of EV charging points throughout the district as laid 
out in our air quality action plan.  

As with all new technologies the price starts high and continues to drop as demand and 
competition grow. The government offers grants for EV vehicle purchase.  

As mentioned above the council are beginning to roll out EV charging points throughout the 
district via public car parks and new developments. This is also a goal of the county council.  

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 12 

Short distances can be accessed by electric cars but one would need another 
car for long distances, thus making the idea unfeasible, at least at the moment 
(8) 

The technology for electric vehicles is just not practical yet. Charging times (not 
the availability of charging points) & range are still major negatives stopping 
their useful, widespread, adoption (39) 

Some respondents also noted that these limitations represent a particular challenge for rural 
parts of South Oxfordshire where journeys are likely to be longer or where it may be unrealistic 
to provide good coverage of charging points. 

A move towards less polluting vehicles is positive, but the use of electric 
vehicles for residents of rural areas, where the typical trip to nearby towns for 
shopping or employment will involve a round trip distance of 30 or 40 miles, is 
likely to be limited. This is particularly the case for those commuting daily to 
work, where for many of the current electric vehicles this will involve a daily 
recharge (170)  

The technology is still not good enough for rural locations! In cities there are 
multiple charging points, but in market towns and villages there are none/few, 
and few locations for them (10) 

 

Electric or hybrid taxis and buses 

There was however support for encouraging bus and taxi companies to use electric vehicles.   

Do encourage buses/taxis/public transport to use electric (48) 

Local taxis sit in the Market Square with their engines running at all times. Most 
of the cars are diesels. Perhaps to obtain a taxi licence, they should only be 
given to electric/hybrid vehicles (72) 

Provided they are safe (noise emitted to make pedestrians aware) taxis and 
buses should be discouraged from using diesels due to their particulate 
emissions, and encouraged to use electric/hybrid (128) 

That said, a couple of people questioned whether the council would be able to get local 
companies to make this change. 

How are you going to get taxis to cooperate? (203) 

Great if you can get taxis to sign up to this (115) 

EV’s currently have a range of around 80-100 miles and some up to 200+ which is further 
than the majority of people travel in one day. Many also have range extenders fitted 
allowing for a longer distance to be achieved via traditional fuel. As technology improves 
the range of such vehicles will also improve.  

Page 48

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 13 

 

No confidence in proposals 

There were a few comments where people expressed a lack of confidence in the proposals 

It would take a LONG time for enough people to convert to [electric cars to] 
make any difference (4) 

I don't feel as though you can make people/businesses change their cars but 
you can always try (105) 

 

HGV AND VANS COMMENTS 

Most comments related to a perceived needs to restrict HGV access to town centres, however 
there were a number of comments that related to the draft strategy’s proposals to have more 
enforcement of weight restriction zones and rerouting commercial sat nav devices to avoid 
areas with air pollution. 

Comment type Frequency 

Restrict HGV access 18 

Enforcement 16 

Satnav rerouting 15 

Delivery and service plans (inc. freight planning and places to transfer deliveries) 9 

No confidence in proposals  6 

Support 6 

National policy needs to change 5 

Home deliveries  4 

May more air quality problems elsewhere 3 

Cleaner HGVs 3 

Non-HGV traffic bigger problem 3 

Damage to roads and buildings 2 

Delivery times 2 

Low emissions zone  2 

HGVs main polluters 2 

 

Restrict HGV access to town centres 

Most comments were in favour of restricting access to HGVs in Henley, Watlington and 
Wallingford. 

Strongly support this idea. HGVs should not come through our small towns. 
There needs to be regulation and enforcement (162) 

There should be no need for any HGV to pass through the traffic lights in the 
centre of town (97) 

The council already incentivises taxis to go green with graduated licence fees. Please see 
the following link for fees: 
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/sites/default/files/South%20Oxfordshire%20taxi%20fees%20a
nd%20charges%202014-15.pdf 
 

The council will work with OCC to help clean up the bus fleet.  

Page 49

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 14 

 
 

Enforcement of Weight Restriction Zones 

But, many respondents recognised that restricting HGV access to town centres needs to be 
effectively enforced for behaviour change to result. 

The weight limits for HGVs need to be enforced effectively (55) 

Without unavoidable enforcement these proposals will make little difference (19) 

Enforcement of weight limits and checks on destinations and issuing on the spot 
fines is the only answer (21) 

 

Satnav rerouting 

Some respondents were particularly enthusiastic about proposals to work with the county 
council so that HGVs are rerouted via satellite navigation to avoid areas with poor air quality.  

Could be practical and even save fuel for businesses by using intelligent 
routing. Usually the most polluted areas are those with the most restrictions on 
traffic flow, queuing traffic is an incredibly inefficient use of fuel & causes 
pollution (39) 

Satnav amendment could be really useful. I often speak with foreign drivers who 
are upset that they have had to force their way through Watlington, they would 
rather not be there (33)  

 

However, others questioned the viability of this proposal without the support of national 
government. 

There is a problem with SatNavs, which are much more expensive for 
commercial vehicles than cars, so freight companies do not invest in them. 
Pressure is needed on Government and the companies to remove this disparity 
(120) 

 
 

Delivery and service plans (inc. freight planning and places to transfer deliveries) 

There were a couple of straightforward comments made in support of freight planning. 

Freight journey planning is a good idea (193) 

We have discussed the issue of restricting HGV access to towns with OCC and due to 
reasons of economics and lack of other suitable routes this is not an option they can 
consider.  

Stricter enforcement of WRZ’s is proposed in our action plan and low emission strategy.  

 

Satnav rerouting is proposed in our action plan and low emission strategy.  

Council officers attend working groups where we feed information about issues and ideas 
directly to DEFRA which will influence national policies. 

Page 50

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 15 

Freight journey planning might be workable (133) 

More specifically, a few people suggested that it should be possible to set up a place 
outside of towns to transfer deliveries from HGV to smaller vans. 

HGVs should deliver to depots on the fringes of towns, with smaller (and ideally 
electric) vehicles used for final deliveries to retail premises (59) 

You could require businesses to collect their deliveries from lorry parks + 
storage containers outside towns. The towns could provide electric vans for 
local businesses to hire to do this (135) 

 

 

BUSSES COMMENTS  

Respondents were broadly supportive of proposals to encourage bus operators to commit to 
stricter European emissions standards.  The comments show there was interest in making sure 
bus engines are turned off when stationary, however some respondents were nervous about 
upgrading buses as they might make existing services unviable or have limited impact. 

Comment type Frequency 

Turning engine off when stationary 25 

Electric/ hybrid buses  14 

Cuts to bus services 13 

Examples of initiatives elsewhere 8 

Provide subsidies to bus companies 8 

New conditions may undermine the viability of bus services  8 

How much impact? 7 

Park and ride  5 

Concern about age of buses 5 

Doesn't it already happen? 4 

Buses reduce use of cars 4 

Support  3 

Driver training 3 

Should also apply to school buses 3 

Not enough buses 3 

Brexit (loss of EU emission standards) 2 

Enforcement  2 

Move bus stops out of town 2 

 

Turning off engine when stationary 

Following on from earlier comments about getting drivers to turn off their engines when 
stationary, over 20 respondents said this behaviour change should also apply to buses.  

A lot could be achieved by action to stop bus engines running when standing in 
the town square and at traffic lights (187) 

Bus drivers are the worst offenders - keeping their engines running when 
waiting at the stops. You would be amazed at the answers I has when I tackled 
them about this pollution (211) 

These measures are already in our action plan and council officers are having preliminary 
discussions with OCC on the matter.  

Page 51

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 16 

However, three people noted they had already seen an improvement from bus companies in 
this respect.  

Most buses do now turn their engines off if stopping for any length of time, 
which is an improvement (86) 

 
 

Electric/ hybrid buses (and examples of initiatives elsewhere)   

A number of respondents also felt that bus companies should be encouraged to invest in new 
technology such as electric or hybrid buses to reduce emissions.  

Switch all buses to hybrid or electric. Current buses all seems a bit old and dirty 
(153) 

Investigate electric/hybrid minibuses for less popular routes (81) 

Reference was made to similar schemes in Oxford and Reading.  

Oxford City has a ban on regular buses that do not conform to strict emissions 
standards […] There is no reason why South Oxfordshire should not adopt 
these standards as well (120) 

Reading Transport seem to be pioneers in this field using biofuels and low 
emission vehicles (210) 

 

Cuts to bus services 

In contrast, some people felt that it would be difficult to encourage bus companies to commit to 
stricter European emissions standards in the context of OCC’s withdrawal of subsidies for 
these services.    

Many bus routes are about to be axed due to budget cuts. Additional costs to 
improve air quality at the expense of bus routes seems an unwise option (111) 

At this time, where bus services are being cut due to lack of funding, it would be 
pointless to add further costs to bus services by imposing stricter standards 
(210) 

New conditions may undermine viability of bus services  

A few respondents went further and expressed concern that reduced bus services may mean 
more people end up travelling by car and therefore add to air quality problems in the district.  

The removal of bus subsidies will necessitate more car journeys in rural areas 
which will sadly negate any improvements bus companies make in their 
emissions (21) 

The turning off of engines when stationary is a measure that is already in our air quality 
action plan.  

Electric and hybrid buses along with cuts to services is a topic we discuss with OCC who 
control buses.  

The age of buses is an action we are working on with OCC and the bus operators as laid 
out in our air quality action plan.  

Page 52

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 17 

 

Provide subsidies to bus companies  

In view of this, eight people said the council may need to consider subsidising improvements 
specified in the draft strategy. 

Unless the Council will provide some sort of grant to the bus companies to 
invest in cleaner vehicles, it will not happen (152) 

 

How much impact? 

Several people questioned the impact that the proposals would make to improving air quality in 
the district.  Nearly all of these respondents felt that buses are only a small part of the problem 
given the limited service offered. 

There are so few bus routes left they can't make that much difference (110) 

In Watlington there are so few services buses it is of little consideration (50) 

 

 
 

PLANNING AND PROCUREMENT COMMENTS  

The comments detailed below demonstrate that whilst there are concerns about new 
development taking place, there is support for measures which will reduce impact on traffic 
congestion and air quality.   

Comment type Frequency 

More housing means more pollution 20 

Better walking and cycling routes 11 

Developer guidance doesn’t take into consideration cumulative impact 7 

Make sure it happens  7 

Car free developments 6 

Infrastructure should be built first 6 

Bypass for Watlington 5 

Enforce it 4 

Neighbourhood plan is useless 3 

Better bus services 2 

 

More housing means more pollution 

A number of respondents pointed out that new developments are likely to increase congestion 
on local roads and contribute to air pollution. 

More housing development will inevitably make for more pollution (55) 

None of the actions in the strategy or our action plan affect the viability of bus services.  

We will pass these comments to OCC who have responsibility for the bus services.  

The proposals are based on scientific modelling which shows they would be effective in 
reducing air pollution.  

Page 53

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 18 

The reality is that more housing will generate more pollution, particularly in our 
area where people rely on cars to get around and where the ratio of cars to 
households in greater than 1:1 (90) 

If you want lower air pollution, you cannot achieve this with lots more houses 
(160) 

 

 

Better walking and cycling routes  

Respondents also stressed the need for new developments to be well served by footpaths and 
cycle routes, thereby reducing new residents’ dependency on car use. 

Ensure cycling and walking are addressed in the earliest possible stages of the 
planning process, and require developers to put in good quality cycle paths (68) 

All new developments should have active travel at their heart, making it 
convenient to walk and cycle and less convenient to drive (155) 

 

Developer doesn’t take into consideration cumulative impact on emissions 

Several people pointed out that existing SODC ‘Guidance for Developers’ only addresses the 
impact that a new development has on air quality in isolation.  They stressed that the guidance 
should consider the cumulative impact developments have on air quality across a larger area.  

The current SODC "Guidance for Developers" considers new developments in 
isolation, whereas there will be a cumulative effect on vehicle numbers and thus 
emissions. The new Local Plan and Neighbourhood Plan must be allowed to 
consider the cumulative effects of new development on air quality (58) 

The new Local Plan and Neighbourhood Plan must be allowed to consider the 
cumulative effects of new development on air quality (107) 

 

Make sure it happens  

Lastly, some people felt the council just needed to get on with making sure existing policies are 
enforced. 

It would be very disappointing to learn that this was not already a significant 
factor in assessing planning applications (97) 

We have improved our policies for this through the low emission strategy, action plan and 
developer guidance in order to mitigate against the effects of additional housing as well as 
to encourage more sustainable development. 

Better walking and cycling routes are part of the developer guidance and something we are 
working with OCC to improve. 

The developer guidance does take into consideration the cumulative impact of 
developments, this is laid out on page 3 bullet point 6, page 6 bullet point 5, page 7 bullet 
point 16 and also is a factor in the councils assessment of the reports and application. 

Page 54

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 19 

It is important not only to have good policies in place but also to make sure that 
they are actually implemented (182) 

 

 
 
WALLINGFORD BRIDGE COMMENTS 

Six out of every ten respondents said they supported proposals to restrict access to 
Wallingford Bridge.  The comments help to explain why people were divided over this issue.  
They show that there were concerns about any knock on effects to traffic elsewhere and 
potential loss of tourism and trade to the town.  There were also a number of additional 
suggestions for the town including restricting access to HGVs and introducing 20 mph speed 
limits.     

Comment type Frequency 

May cause congestion elsewhere 19 

Concern over economic impact 15 

Ban HGVs/commercial vehicles 8 

Enforcement/ number plate recognition cameras 8 

Introduce 20mph speed limits 7 

Trial restrictions to use of bridge 7 

Re-phase traffic lights 6 

Pedestrianise town centre 6 

Create a park and ride 5 

Make similar proposals for Henley bridge 5 

Encourage cycling 4 

Build footbridge / widen footpaths 4 

Remind people to turn off engine whilst stationary 4 

Make bridge one way 3 

Improve signage 3 

Resident exemption 2 

 

May cause congestion elsewhere 

19 people questioned whether restricting traffic flow over the bridge would result in increased 
traffic congestion elsewhere.   

This will only move congestion around the town (5) 

Specifically, some residents were worried that ‘rat runs’ would be created through some 
residential areas. 

Restrictions on the bridge are unacceptable and if imposed would simply move 
traffic onto other entrances to the town, through residential areas (138) 

I live in Norries Drive in Wallingford which is already a rat run coming from 
Didcot to get to Shillingford/Oxford anybody who knows the area coming from 
Didcot and gets to Slade Road roundabout are not going to go around the 
bypass to get to Shillingford/Oxford (217) 

 

Following the consultation of the strategy the council will vote on whether to adopt the 
strategy or not. 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 20 

There were also concerns that the bypass would not be able to cope with more traffic during 
busy periods. 

But there would be more traffic on the bypass. Probably queuing and air 
pollution would increase there (62) 

In principle I agree, however, I can see this action merely moving the stationary 
traffic to the roundabouts situated in the Wallingford bypass road, which already 
struggle in rush hour (7) 

 
 

Concern over economic impact 

Some respondents also questioned the economic impact the proposals would have on the 
town.  They suggested that visitors may be put off coming to the town and go to other more 
accessible towns instead.  

Impact on town businesses near the bridge (restaurants/pubs/bars/etc.) must be 
considered (207) 

Fewer people will visit the town from the east if the bridge cannot be used, 
reducing the income of local businesses (55) 

 [It will] put visitors off and reduce economy of town (203) 

 

 

 

Ban HGVs/ commercial vehicles 

A few people felt that HGVs and commercial vehicles should be banned from using the bridge 
entirely or at least at specific times.  

NO LORRIES OR VANS over bridge (203) 

Would like to see all lorries and HGVs banned from bridge - they should use by-
pass to access to/from Wallingford (210) 

 

 

Enforcement/ number plate recognition cameras 

There was recognition that enforcing restrictions relating to the use of the bridge might prove 
challenging.  Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) cameras were suggested as a 
potential solution.    

Concerns that congestion would be caused elsewhere during the times the bridge is closed 
to cars is something that would be modelled and monitored in detail during pre-discussions 
and potential trials before the action would ever be completed.  

Concerns over economic impact would be considered. The proposed restrictions would only 
be at rush hours, which do not coincide with peak shopping hours so it is unlikely to effect 
the local shops.  

It is not possible or viable to ban HGV’s and commercial vehicles from the town centre as 
this would directly affect the economic viability of the town.  

Page 56

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 21 

The hardest issues here are communicating this restriction, enforcing them and 
recovering any penalties for access infringements (17) 

Vehicle recognition software like the TAG system would facilitate charging [for 
use of the bridge] (86) 

 

 
 

Introduce 20mph speed limits  

20mph speed limits were also posited as a deterrent for traffic cutting through the town rather 
than using the bypass.  

It would be good to encourage more traffic to go around Wallingford rather than 
through it. […] Maybe reducing the speeds through the town so it becomes 
clearly quicker to take the bypass? (199) 

 
 

Trial the restrictions to the use of the bridge 

Finally, a few people expressed support for the strategy’s proposal to trail restrictions to the 
use of the bridge before putting a permanent scheme in place. 

We would support trying out restricting traffic on the bridge (58) 

I agree that it should be investigated in more detail - particularly to see who 
would be most affected. There is an obvious danger that this measure would 
have a big impact on some and be no inconvenience at all to others (187) 

 

 
 

  

If this option is adopted, we will then consider all available enforcement methods. 

 

20mph speed limits do not always bring about the reduction in pollution people may think 
and can have the opposite effect. In Wallingford, because of congestion, it is very rare that 
people manage to reach the 30mph speed limit therefore a 20mph limit would have little 
impact on improving air quality.  

As mentioned the bridge restrictions would be trialled and assessed before being imposed.  

Page 57

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 22 

WATLINGTON TRAFFIC FLOW AGREEMENT 

Improving the traffic flow through Watlington was another controversial proposal in the 
strategy.  One in five respondents disagreed with this, and resistance was higher amongst 
residents responding to the consultation. The comments help to explain the concerns that 
some of these people have about the proposal.  The need for alternative parking to be made 
available as well as enforcing speed limits were key issues.    

Comment type  Frequency 

Alternative parking required 21 

Speed restrictions needed 21 

Bypass needed 17 

More enforcement is needed 16 

May encourage more traffic 12 

Traffic lights 6 

Ban HGV's 5 

One way system needed 3 

Dorset model should be replicated 2 

Want to see technical data  2 

 

Alternative parking required 

A number of people felt that alternative parking provision should be made for people who 
would no longer be able to park on the main street. 

But where will the owners park their cars? (62) 

Where would all the cars parked on the road go? Would the council provide a 
new car park/additional parking spaces for them otherwise they will just park 
and block all the back roads in the town (29) 

Good idea, as long as other parking spaces are provided for residents (153) 

Adequate arrangements would need to be made for alternative parking (176) 

 

Speed restrictions needed  

There were also fears that if on-street parking were removed and traffic flow through the town 
improved, vehicles might be inclined to speed up. 

I would like less parking in Watlington but this may mean traffic might exceed 
the speed limit (9) 

Without parking traffic would speed! (23) 

Freer roads would increase speed and traffic (87) 

For this reason, several respondents felt that measures needed to be put in place to either 
enforce the existing speed limit or reduce it.  

As long as traffic can't go faster as a result of fewer parked cars - need 
measures to slow it down (69) 

 

The logistics of alternative parking would be considered as part of the feasibility and trial.  

Page 58

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 23 

Agree, but also put in a 20mph speed limit. 

 
 

Bypass needed  

17 people argued that building a by-pass around Watlington would be a more effective way of 
managing air pollution. 

A bypass needs to be provided!! (203) 

I believe we need to find a way to put in a bypass. The traffic situation has 
become almost intolerable during rush hours, and you can feel the effect as you 
breath in the toxic fumes (28) 

The only solution is a bypass for Watlington funded by new housing and grants 
to improve air quality. At peak times most traffic is passing through (5) 

 
 

More enforcement needed 

A number of statements were made in support of enforcing the current weight restriction on 
vehicles passing through the town.  This was an action proposed in the strategy and further 
comments are shown on page 26. 
 

The weight limit needs to be enforced effectively (55) 

Rather than make the high street no parking, enforce the 7.5tonne rule (179) 

 

 
 

May encourage more traffic  

A dozen people felt that improving the traffic flow through the town could exacerbate existing 
traffic problems. 

Better traffic flow could encourage more vehicles to use the route (81) 

I feel it would cause increased traffic. I currently avoid Watlington because of 
the delays due to parked cars (9) 

It is mainly a perception that cars speed through Watlington, the fact is with the relatively 
short length of road it is not possible for most cars to exceed the limit within the town. This 
is a factor that will be monitored should the on street parking be removed.  

OCC have stated there are no available funds to build a bypass for Watlington. Watlington 
would have to accept a large number of additional homes in order to fund a bypass.  

Additional enforcement of the WRZ is a measure in our action plan as well as the low 
emission strategy. This is something that is in OCC’s remit and we are working with them 
on this issue.   

Page 59

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 24 

The other aspect of this solution is that if it does lead to an improvement of 
traffic flow the result may well be that a better travel experience for through 
traffic leads to a greater use of Watlington as a through route by all vehicle 
types including HGVs (159) 

 

WATLINGTON HGV WEIGHT LIMIT ENFORCEMENT  

Most of the comments (25) were in support of the strategies’ proposal to increase enforcement 
of the HGV weight limit in Watlington.   

Comment type Frequency  

Support for increased enforcement 25 

ANPR cameras needed 10 

Bban HGV's 6 

Bypass needed 6 

Do the same in Henley 5 

Introduce vehicle width restriction 5 

Reduce weight limit 3 

Reduce WRZ 3 

 

Increased enforcement required 

Here are some of the comments in support of the proposal to better enforce the weight limit. 

Enforcement needs to be more strictly enforced and publicised (145) 

There seems to be no enforcement at all of the weight limit currently, so any 
improvement would be welcome, as very large vehicles often cause gridlock 
when unable to make turns, or have in the past damaged buildings! (196) 

Enforcement of the weight limit used to be a regular thing, but seems to have 
been forgotten about (39) 

This absolutely needs better enforcement. Originally enforced by Thames 
Valley Police, an over-extended OCC trading standards department does its 
best but things could be much better (205) 

Without the enforcement of the 7.5 weight limit, any and all other traffic calming 
measures would be a waste of time and money (91) 

 

It is unknown as to whether this action may encourage more traffic through Watlington. 
However this is a proposal that would be trialled and assessed before implementation.  

 

Additional enforcement of the WRZ is a measure in our action plan and the low emission 
strategy. This is something that is in OCC’s remit and we are working with them to try and 
explore and deliver on. OCC have stated that banning HGV’s is not an option and would be 
detrimental to the economic viability of the area as well as simply moving the pollution 
problem elsewhere.  

Page 60

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 25 

ANPR cameras needed 

Ten people suggested that the use of automatic number plate recognition (ANPR) cameras 
would make enforcement of the weight limit more effective.  

It would be worth investing in permanent vehicle number recognition systems to 
monitor the issue constantly (55) 

ANPR to identify HGVs breaking the regulations and persuade the police to 
issue automatic fixed penalties as they already do with speeding offences (19) 

Enforcement by ANPR and chicanes would help, especially at night and early 
morning when the rat-run to Reading is at its height (33) 

Aggressive enforcement [is needed], possibly with an automated camera or 
some such device (43) 

  

The potential introduction of ANPR cameras is also in our action plan and the low emission 
strategy.  

Page 61

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 26 

HOW WE HAVE USED THE RESULTS OF THE CONSULTATION 

The council would like to thank everyone who took part in this consultation it was a very 
encouraging turnout.  

The consultation highlighted a high level of support for all of the proposed measures which was 
a very positive outcome. No new viable measures were proposed as part of the consultation, 
therefore no need was identified to alter the strategy as a result of the comments received. 
Many questions were raised which we have tried to answer in this report and encouragingly 
many of these were actions that already formed part of our adopted air quality action plan so it 
has been good to receive support for these.  

Some concerns were raised over the measures to restrict vehicular access to the bridge in 
Wallingford and also the removal of on street parking in parts of Watlington. We understand 
that these are significant measures that would affect local residents, which is why they would 
first be trialled before being adopted. This approach enables us to gather detailed evidence of 
all the potential effects the measures could have before any decisions were made about 
whether to make them permanent or not.  

In conclusion we are looking to get the low emission strategy fully adopted so we can progress 
with the measures and trials proposed within it.  

 

  

Page 62

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 27 

FURTHER INFORMATION 

For information about the consultation or the results presented in this report, please contact: 

Phillip Vincent 

Corporate Consultation Officer  

South Oxfordshire District Council 

01235 422154  

phillip.vincent@southandvale.gov.uk 

 

To enquire about the councils work on air quality, 

 

Claire Spendley  

Environmental Health Officer 

South Oxfordshire District Council 

01235 540530 

claire.spendley@southandvale.gov.uk 

 

 

  

Page 63

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 28 

APPENDIX A – CONSULTATION WORDING 

 

 

 

South Oxfordshire Low Emission Strategy 2016 

South Oxfordshire District Council invites you to comment on a draft low emission strategy for 
the district which puts forward some ideas for improving air quality across the district and in 
settlements where this is a problem.   

The consultation seeks your feedback on the ideas put forward in the draft strategy.  It also 
provides an opportunity for you to suggest other things that could be done to reduce air 
pollution. 

How to give your views 

To make it easier for you to respond, we have summarised key parts of the plan in the survey 
itself. 

Please send your completed surveys to: 

Claire Spendley 
Environmental Protection 
South Oxfordshire District Council 
135 Eastern Avenue 
Milton Park 
Milton 
OX14 4SB 

 

The consultation runs from 1 February to 25 March 2016. 

What happens next 

We will consider all comments received and use these to finalise the strategy which we expect 
to publish towards the end of 2016 along with a summary of how we have responded to 
comments made in this consultation.  

Further information 

If you would like further information about this consultation, or have any questions please 
contact: 

Claire Spendley 

Environmental Health Officer 

Claire.Spendley@southandvale.gov.uk 

01235 540555 

 

  

Page 64

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 29 

Introduction 

Three towns in South Oxfordshire have air quality ‘hot spots’ where vehicle emissions could 
damage health. 

We asked some air quality experts to look at this problem and they have written a draft “Low 
Emissions Strategy” that contains some ideas they say could reduce harmful vehicle emissions 
in these hot spots, and across the district as a whole. 

The ideas they’ve suggested include training for bus and HGV drivers, making it more practical 
to use an electric car in South Oxfordshire, and asking bus companies to commit to using 
vehicles with cleaner engines. There are also some ideas that are specific to certain towns.  

You’ll have a chance to comment on all of these individual ideas later in the survey. 

Do you have any general comments or suggestions so far?  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 65

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 30 

IDEA: Helping people reduce emissions from vehicles 

This could include: 

 campaigns to encourage people to switch off their engines at traffic queues in certain 
areas 

 working with other organisations to provide, improve and encourage use of alternatives 
to their cars 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with this idea? 

 Strongly agree 
 Agree 
 Neither agree nor disagree 
 Disagree 
 Strongly disagree 
 Don’t know/ no opinion 
 

Do you have any comments or suggestions about this idea? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 66

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 31 

IDEA: Supporting the use of electronic and low emission vehicles 

Electric vehicles are becoming more accessible and affordable.  We can help to encourage 
residents and local businesses to use them by improving the public charging network.  We 
could also work with businesses we’re already in contact with e.g. taxi firms, to encourage 
them to use electric and low emission vehicles. 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with this idea? 

 Strongly agree 
 Agree 
 Neither agree nor disagree 
 Disagree 
 Strongly disagree 
 Don’t know/ no opinion 

 

Do you have any comments or suggestions about this idea? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 67

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 32 

IDEA: Reducing pollution from HGVs and vans 

This could include: 

 HGV eco-driving campaigns. 
 Delivery and service plans, and construction logistics plans, which help reduce freight 

deliveries to specific sites and organisations. 
 Freight journey planning – working with the county council to make sure areas with poor 

air quality are fed into freight vehicles’ satnavs so routes are automatically planned to 
avoid these areas. 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with this idea? 

 Strongly agree 
 Agree 
 Neither agree nor disagree 
 Disagree 
 Strongly disagree 
 Don’t know/ no opinion 
 

Do you have any comments or suggestions about this idea? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 68

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 33 

IDEA: Reducing bus emissions 

This would involve working with the county council to encourage bus operators to commit to 
stricter European emissions standards, as well as supporting eco-driver training for bus 
drivers. 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with this idea? 

 Strongly agree 
 Agree 
 Neither agree nor disagree 
 Disagree 
 Strongly disagree 
 Don’t know/ no opinion 
 

Do you have any comments or suggestions about this idea? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 69

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 34 

IDEA: Reducing the impact new developments have on air quality 

We’re currently creating our new Local Plan, which sets out where new housing should go, and 
what infrastructure should be put in place to support it.  We want to make sure policies in the 
plan aim to reduce the impact new developments can have on traffic congestion and air 
quality.  It's also possible for us to work with local communities creating their Neighbourhood 
Plans to make sure they consider air quality. 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with this idea? 

 Strongly agree 
 Agree 
 Neither agree nor disagree 
 Disagree 
 Strongly disagree 
 Don’t know/ no opinion 
 

Do you have any comments or suggestions about this idea? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 70

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 35 

IDEA: Restrict access to the bridge over the Thames at Wallingford to some vehicles at 
certain times 

We could investigate what options there are to limit the use of the bridge at certain times.  This 
could significantly reduce the amount of traffic queuing at the lights on the High Street, which is 
a major source of the harmful vehicle emissions in the town centre. 

If we decided to look into this option, we’d investigate in more detail to see how this could 
work, and we would consult more closely with local people so we can understand local issues 
better. 

Are you a resident of Wallingford? 

 Yes 
 No  
 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with this idea? 

 Strongly agree 
 Agree 
 Neither agree nor disagree 
 Disagree 
 Strongly disagree 
 Don’t know/ no opinion 
 

Do you have any comments or suggestions about this idea? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 71

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 36 

IDEA: Improving the flow of traffic through Watlington 

One of the main problems in Watlington is vehicles struggling to travel past parked cars on the 
roads through the town, so they sit still, pumping out emissions – this is mainly caused by 
traffic parking on Couching and Shirburn Street.   

Restricting parking on these roads could keep traffic moving and significantly reduce vehicle 
emissions. 

Are you a resident of Watlington? 

 Yes 
 No  
 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with this idea? 

 Strongly agree 
 Agree 
 Neither agree nor disagree 
 Disagree 
 Strongly disagree 
 Don’t know/ no opinion 
 

Do you have any comments or suggestions about this idea? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 72

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 37 

IDEA: More enforcement of the 7.5 tonne weight limit in Watlington 

This wouldn’t ban larger vehicles from the town as many of them are using the roads for 
legitimate reasons for local deliveries and access, but it might reduce the number of larger 
vehicles from using the town as a short cut. 

Are you a resident of Watlington? 

 

 Yes 
 No  
 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with this idea? 

 Strongly agree 
 Agree 
 Neither agree nor disagree 
 Disagree 
 Strongly disagree 
 Don’t know/ no opinion 
 

Do you have any comments or suggestions about this idea? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 73

Agenda Item 6



South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy Consultation Summary (April 2016) 38 

Thank you for your responses. 

Would you like to be kept informed about other consultations being undertaken by Vale 
of White Horse District Council? 

 Yes 
 No  

 

If yes, please provide us with some contact details below. 

Your information will only be used for the purpose of contacting you in relation to council 
consultations. 

 

Name  

 

 

Email  

 

Phone  

 

 

 

Page 74

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Low Emissions Strategy 2016: 
Public Engagement Summary  

South Oxfordshire District 
Council 

Final Report 

February 2017 

Page 75

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 2 
 

 

 
 

 
Project details and acknowledgements ............................................................................................... 3 

Executive Summary .............................................................................................................................. 4 

Introduction .......................................................................................................................................... 6 

Background ........................................................................................................................................... 6 

Results ................................................................................................................................................. 10 

1. Wallingford bridge access .............................................................................................................. 10 

2. Watlington parking restrictions ..................................................................................................... 17 

3. Watlington HGV weight limit enforcement ................................................................................... 21 

4. Henley ............................................................................................................................................. 25 

Discussion............................................................................................................................................ 30 

Appendix A: Wallingford door to door survey (online and consultation survey varies slightly)...... 35 

Appendix B: Watlington door to door survey (online and consultation survey varies slightly) ...... 39 

Appendix C: Henley door to door survey (online and consultation survey varies slightly) .............. 45 

Appendix D: Wallingford sample profile ............................................................................................ 50 

Appendix E: Watlington sample profile ............................................................................................. 51 

Appendix F: Henley sample profile .................................................................................................... 52 

 
 

 

  

           Contents Page 

Page 76

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 3 
 

Project details and acknowledgements 
 

 

Title Low Emission Strategy 2016: Public Engagement Summary 

Client South Oxfordshire District Council  

Project number 15107G 

Author Jennifer Uddin and David Chong-Ping  

Research Manager Jennifer Uddin and David Chong-Ping 

 

We would like to thank the residents of Watlington, Wallingford and Henley who provided their views, 

ideas and feedback.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

M·E·L Research  

2nd Floor, 1 Ashted Lock, Birmingham Science Park Aston, Birmingham. B7 4AZ  

Email: info@melresearch.co.uk  

Web:   www.melresearch.co.uk 

Tel: 0121 604 4664 

 

Page 77

Agenda Item 6

mailto:info@melresearch.co.uk
http://www.melresearch.co.uk/


                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 4 
 

Executive Summary 

Background 

Between February and March 2016, South 

Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) carried out a 

district wide public consultation to see whether 

residents supported the Council’s low vehicle 

emission proposals. Following on from this, 

SODC commissioned M·E·L Research to carry out 

an independent, more targeted set of public 

engagement activities to gather views on the 

proposals.  

Aim 

The aim was to gather views from residents 

around the proposals that related specifically to 

their respective areas.   

Method 

Feedback was gathered via door-to-door 

surveys, public information events (surveys and 

informal chats), online surveys and 

emails/letters.  

Results 

Wallingford 

 Door to door surveys showed that over half 

of those living on the streets ‘directly 

affected’ by the proposal to restrict access to 

Wallingford bridge agree with it (58%) and 

feel that it would have a positive impact. This 

is in line with the findings from the previous 

public consultation 

 Surveys completed online and during the 

public information event however suggests 

that resistance to the Wallingford bridge 

proposal is far higher by those who do not 

necessarily live on the affected streets (72% 

disagreement rate) with the majority feeling 

that it would have a negative impact   

 Reasons for people being against the 

proposal include concerns that it would 

cause congestion elsewhere, have a negative 

economic impact and would cause 

inconvenience/disruption to journeys  

 

Watlington 

 Results across the methodologies shows that 

the majority disagreed with the proposal to 

restrict parking in areas of Watlington feeling 

that it is would have a negative impact. This 

finding differs to the previous public 

consultation where the majority were in 

agreement with the proposal 

 Reasons for people being against the 

proposal include concerns that it would 

increase speeding and parking problems 

 By contrast, the majority are in agreement 

with the proposal to enforce the 7.5 tonne 

weight limit in Watlington, feeling that it 

would have a positive impact which is in line 

with the previous public consultation findings 

 

Page 78

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 5 
 

Henley 

 The majority of Henley residents did not 

feel that enough was being done to 

address the problem of air quality in 

Henley although many of the ideas 

suggested to improve air quality are 

ones that the Council has already 

considered   

  

Page 79

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 6 
 

Introduction 

Background  
In 2015, South Oxford District Council (SODC) adopted an Air Quality Action Plan which set out how they 

would seek to address known air quality problems in Henley, Wallingford and Watlington designated as 

Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA’s). One of the recommendations of the Air Quality Action Plan was 

to put together a more detailed Low Emission Strategy (LES) that would look at what low emission 

measures realistically could be implemented to improve air quality in each of the AQMAs, but also the 

district as a whole.  

After a successful government bid to DEFRA, the council commissioned environmental experts ricardo-

AEA to undertake feasibility studies and prepare the strategy.  

The experts recommended the council consider five broad policies for improving air quality in the district 

as well as three specific actions that could be taken in Wallingford and Watlington. Additional actions 

were considered unviable for Henley as a result of the modelling of a series of low emission measures all 

highlighting that any potential improvements to air quality would be negligible. 

In February 2016, SODC published a draft strategy setting out the proposals to tackle the problem of 

vehicle emissions in the district. They also carried out a district wide public consultation on the strategy 

between February and March 2016 to see whether residents supported the proposals via promoting an 

online survey. Findings from this can be found at http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/about-us/have-your-

say/feedback-previous-consultations-0  

Following on from this, SODC commissioned M·E·L Research to carry out an independent, more targeted 

set of public engagement activities. This report presents the results from this second phase.

Aims 
The aim of the targeted public engagement activities was to gather the views of those living in key 

streets/roads (identified by SODC as being directly affected by the proposals) in Watlington and 

Wallingford and more widely across Henley. The aim was to gather views around the proposals to lower 

vehicle emissions that related specifically to their respective areas.   

Page 80

Agenda Item 6

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/about-us/have-your-say/feedback-previous-consultations-0
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/about-us/have-your-say/feedback-previous-consultations-0


                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 7 
 

This work sought to understand whether people were aware of the proposals within their local area; how 

they felt about it; and how the proposals might impact on them or their household.  We also wanted to 

see if Henley residents felt enough was being done to improve air quality in their town and whether more 

could do done. 

 

Method  

Door to door survey 

A door to door survey was the key method of data collection. This enabled feedback to be gathered 

specifically from those who were considered to be directly affected by the proposals. It also meant that 

residents who would not typically participate in public engagement events or perhaps were unaware of 

the proposals also had opportunity to share their views enabling a broader, more representative 

standpoint. In order to capture the views of a wide range of people, door knocking took place both on 

weekdays and weekends.  

A trained interviewer visited targeted streets and offered local residents the opportunity to complete the 

survey. For Watlington and Wallingford, specific streets were identified by SODC as being most likely to be 

directly affected (based on proximity) by a proposal; these were then visited. As there was no specific 

proposals for Henley, the interviewer carried out the survey with 25 residents in each of the seven lower 

super output areas (LSOA’s) within Henley, ensuring that the residents spoken to were representative of 

the Henley population in terms of age and gender.  

The survey fieldwork was undertaken as follows: 

 Watlington: Brook Street, Couching Street and Shirburn Street were visited on 7-8th October 2016 

 Wallingford: ‘The Street’ Crowmarsh, High Street, Castle Street and Market Place were visited on 

14-15th October 2016   

 Henley: 21-28th October 2016 

Where no-one was available on the first day of interviewing in Watlington and Wallingford, the 

interviewer returned on the following day. 

A copy of the Wallingford survey can be found in Appendix A, Watlington survey in Appendix B and Henley 

survey in Appendix C.  

Page 81

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 8 
 

 

Online survey 

During the door to door survey phase, where the researcher did not get a response from a property, a 

‘Sorry we missed you card’ card was left behind promoting an online version of the survey, and advertising 

a public information event in the area. This enabled those who the researcher was unable to reach, the 

opportunity to still give their feedback.  

 

Public information events  

Public information events were held at Watlington, Wallingford and Henley town hall. This was to give 

residents an opportunity to have an open dialogue with SODC Officers in order to gain a better 

understanding of the proposals to reduce vehicle emissions within their area, as well as to share their 

views and concerns. These events were promoted via press release on the council’s website on 5 October, 

in social media and in an article featured in South News on 11 October. Furthermore, during the door to 

door survey exercise, the researcher promoted the event to each resident that was spoken to. Those that 

did not answer the door received a postcard with the details of the event.  

The public information events took place as follows: 

 Watlington: 15th October 2016 

 Wallingford: 22nd October 2016   

 Henley: 29th October 2016 

During the public information events, people were given the opportunity to complete the survey and also 

speak with a council officers and M·E·L researchers to discuss their views. Where permission was given by 

the resident, these conversations were audio recorded. This gave the opportunity to gather feedback from 

those within the area who perhaps were not ‘directly affected’ by the proposals but still had a view on it.  

  

Consideration of emails and letters 

A number of emails from residents were also received following the public information events and a few 

residents submitted additional documents during the events. Whilst this did not form part of the original 

methodology, findings from these have also been considered and included within the report.  

Page 82

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 9 
 

Responses  
 

Table 1 below shows the number of responses received. A full profile of the Wallingford sample can be 

found in Appendix D, Watlington sample profile in Appendix E and Henley sample profile in Appendix F.   

Table 1 Number of responses by area and data collection method 

 

 

The quantitative results from the door to door surveys have been presented separately from results from 

the online and public information event surveys, due to the difference in methodologies and potential for 

self-selection and non-response bias. 

The targeted door to door surveys illustrate the views of a broader range of people and will be more 

representative of those most likely to be directly affected in Wallingford and Watlington. A broadly 

representative sample, by gender and age, was achieved in Henley.  

By contrast, the self-selection nature of the online and public information event survey means that 

responses are unlikely to be representative. In other words, those who took the time to complete the 

survey online and/or attend the consultation are more likely to have stronger views and opinions 

(whether positive or negative) compared to those who did not self-select and/or attend. 

Furthermore, due to the nature of self-selection methodologies there is the risk of residents completing 

multiple surveys. This means that the same person may have completed the survey multiple times online, 

or at the public information event and may have also taken part in a door to door survey.  

Likewise, from the 39 emails/letters received following the Wallingford public information event, a 

number are based upon a similar format and structure (template), suggesting local activism to provide 

views. The views in these six emails do not support the proposal to close Wallingford Bridge. 

It is important to take these points into consideration when interpreting the results in the subsequent 

sections.  

Residents’ comments and verbatim quotes have been included in the report, extracted from the surveys, 

from conversations the researcher had during the public information events and from emails received to 

give further insight behind residents’ views on the proposals.   

 Wallingford Watlington Henley 

Door to door surveys 88 39 175 

Online survey 59 12 9 

Public information event questionnaires 147 54 46 

Other correspondence 39 2 1 

Page 83

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 10 
 

16% 

20% 

8% 

38% 

3% 

11% 

13% 

17% 

59% 

9% 

2% 

5% 

Public information event and online

Door to door

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree nor disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree Don't know / no opinion

Results

1. Wallingford bridge access 
Door to door surveys show that 60% were aware of the proposal compared to 72% of those who 

completed the survey at the public information event and online. This is a statistically significant 

difference. 

During the door to door surveys, 58% stated that they agreed with the proposal which is in line with the 

initial findings. A far lower proportion of those who completed the survey at the public information event 

and online were in agreement (23%). This is a statistically significant difference.  

Figure 1.1 Agreement with proposal to restrict access to Wallingford bridge by data collection method 

Percentage of respondent- base size 88 and 205 respectively 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Wallingford residents were asked whether they felt there would be a positive or negative impact on them 

or their household if the proposal was to go ahead. 58% of those who took part in the door to door 

surveys state that it would have a positive impact, in line with the proportion who agreed with the 

proposal. This compares to only 16% for those who completed a survey either online or at the public 

information event. This is a statistically significant difference.  

Furthermore, 28% of those who took part in the door to door surveys state that it would have a negative 

impact compared to 66% of those who completed a survey either online or at the public information 

event. This is also a statistically significant difference.  

 

 

Page 84

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 11 
 

Figure 1.2 Anticipated impact of proposal to restrict access to Wallingford bridge by data collection method 

Percentage of respondents– base size 88 and 205 respectively  

 

Residents were asked why they felt that the restriction would have a positive or negative impact on them 

or their household. The table below shows the themes that came out from comments relating to the 

positive impacts. Key positive impacts of the proposal appear to be a reduction in traffic (27 residents) as 

well as better air quality as a result of reduced vehicle emissions (24 residents).  

Table 1.1 Themes for positive impact of restricting access to Wallingford bridge  

Theme Frequency 

Reduced traffic 27 

Better air quality 24 

Improved quality of life  11 

Generally positive 11 

Conditions/concerns  9 

Less noise pollution 7 

Easier to cycle 6 

Safety 5 

Easier for pedestrians 5 

Reduced speeding 3 

Access for trade 3 

More attractive town 2 

Other 6 
 

Reduced traffic 

27 residents made comments recognising the need to reduce traffic in the area.    

Reduced traffic on the street, less queues and fewer vehicles speeding off the 

bridge. 

Will reduce traffic on crossroads to High Street. At the moment there is a danger to 

pedestrians from excessive traffic. Too much congestion in town currently. 

Keen to reduce traffic in village. Potentially a good idea. 

16% 

58% 

19% 

14% 

66% 

28% 

Public information event and online

Door to door

Positive impact No real impact Negative impact

Page 85

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 12 
 

Better air quality 

24 residents report that the action would have a positive impact as it would lead to better air quality with 

some residents highlighting health benefits.  

Air better to breathe. 

By reducing air pollution and traffic in the centre of Wallingford it would make it a 

better and healthier place to live. 

Less traffic and fumes in the town. 

 

The table below shows the themes that came out from the comments relating to negative impacts of the 

proposal. In line within findings from the previous public consultation, the most common reasons included 

that the restriction would simply lead to further traffic congestion in other areas of the town (71 

residents) and would have a negative impact on local businesses (62 residents). Another reason that has 

emerged is that it would cause many issues to people’s journeys such as longer travel times and an overall 

difficulty in travelling around the area (61 residents). 

Table 1.2 Themes for negative impact of restricting access to Wallingford bridge  

Theme Frequency 

More congestion elsewhere  71 

Concern over economic impact  62 

Inconvenience/Disruption to journeys  61 

Pollution  21 

General dissatisfaction 3 

GPS confusion 3 

Petrol cost  4 

Where would traffic go? 3 

Affect residents in new build 2 

Other 15 
 

More congestion elsewhere 

Residents were concerned that implementation of the proposal would simply move the traffic and 

pollution to other streets which are already congested (71 residents). A couple of residents highlighted 

past incidences where a temporary closure to a bridge or road has resulted in gridlocks.  

Because it would put more traffic on the residential road leading into Wallingford. 

Traffic will find alternative ways to get into town i.e. Reading Road. This will cause 

standing traffic in an already congested area - causing air pollution. 

If Wallingford Bridge is closed to traffic, those vehicles are most likely to cross the 

river at Shillingford and cut through the 'Harwell estate' meaning an increase in 

traffic pollution for us. These local roads will become grid locked, just like 

Page 86

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 13 
 

Wallingford was recently when on 2 separate occasions, the Shillingford road was 

closed. 

 

Inconvenience/Disruption to journeys 

Many residents felt that the restriction would make their journeys to work and school more difficult and 

time consuming (61 residents).  

I live in St Johns Road and my children are at Crowmarsh school. I drive to school as 

I have to go straight to work after drop-off. Peak hour closure would affect my 

ability to get to work on time; the bypass is always crawling from the new road 

bridge up to Crowmarsh. An absolutely ludicrous suggestion! 

We live in Wallingford and our children go to school in Crowmarsh. We usually 

walk but my wife is disabled and this is not always possible. 

My daughter goes to Crowmarsh primary school and we live in Wallingford and 

due to having other children in a Wallingford school we don't get much time 

between drop off & pick ups so I feel that the bridge closing would cause a massive 

issue with a lot of parents etc. 

 

Concern over economic impact 

Many residents were concerned that the proposal would make it difficult to access certain  areas thereby 

affecting businesses there (62 residents).  

Very worried about the trade impact on Crowmarsh stores. 

Access to Wallingford from Crowmarsh. Will be very difficult. Crowmarsh shop will 

shut because it relies upon passing trade (rush hour). 

If I have to round the bypass to get to the shops and markets in Wallingford I may 

as well keep going and go to Didcot. 

 

Other comments  

51 residents who took part in the survey made suggestions of how air quality in Wallingford could be 

improved. This included further points to consider when restricting bridge access such as limiting or 

stopping HGVs from using the bridge, as well as unrelated ideas for example numerous residents felt that 

the traffic light systems needed to be better synchronised.  

Reduce heavy good vehicles not cars at peak times, as cars bring trade. Road too 

narrow into Wallingford, perhaps one way with exiting traffic directed possibly via 

wood street.  

Page 87

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 14 
 

Local residents should have a permit to give access to the bridge.  Resident often 

needs to get to doctors surgery early in morning.  The amusement fair should not 

be allowed to use bridge. Signage needs to be updated for lorries. 

Should pedestrianise the whole of Wallingford.  Divert traffic over new bridge or 

bypass. Access only for trade. 

I feel the traffic lights at the centre of Wallingford should be adjusted (Thames / St 

Martins crossroads) there is not enough time for traffic to go straight through to 

the bridge - sometimes only about 5 get through - so many waiting and do not turn 

off their engines. Also when it is busy time the W. Bridge lights and centre 

crossroad lights can cause a great big blockage right from the crossroad to the 

bridge. 

Encourage drivers to switch off engines whilst waiting for traffic lights. Display a 

sign to this effect. 

I assume the issue is made worse by standing vehicles. Could the traffic lights 

outside the Boathouse be removed and the lights Crowmarsh side of the Bridge 

synced with the town centre cross road lights. This would remove standing traffic 

between the Boathouse and Wallingford Town Centre. 

 

There were also several responses from residents suggesting that some residents needed further 

information. 

Difficult to comment when no times specified Who will pay for trial? What happens 

to bus routes? How will data be published? How will all the new proposed housing 

developments affect this decision? How do local businesses feel? What actual 

difference will it make? 

Insufficient information supplied! 

 

Two people questioned the evidence given to justify the proposal.  

 

Email/letters 

Around 40 emails/letters were also submitted from residents who all opposed the proposal. Whilst some 

may be residents who also attended the consultation, there are some who explain that they were sending 

their feedback as a result of being unable to attend. The volume of emails suggest there are strong 

feelings about the proposals by residents. The fact that there were six emails which appeared to follow a 

similar format (template) also suggest local activism to provide views. As well as reinforcing the points 

already identified above, comments also include the following points: 

 Concern over whether emergency vehicles will also be restricted from using the bridge  

 Question why buses can still use the bridge despite adding to pollution  

Page 88

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 15 
 

 Has impact of new homes been considered?  

 Concern over safety of school children as a result of increased vehicles who will use The Street as an 
alternative route 

 Request for the council to look at resident comments from online groups such as Bygone Wallingford 
and Wallingford Piper 

 Greater enforcement of parking restrictions to enable better traffic flow  

 Scepticism over the evidence and the approach used to come to this proposal  

 Has traffic modelling taken place?  

 Is there a monitoring strategy in place for the trial?  

 Potential accidents caused by the increase in traffic on smaller roads 

 

Comments made at public information event  

Below are some of the comments made by those who attended the public information event which 

provide further insight into residents’ views and the reasons behind them:  

Our only routes into Wallingford as far as I can see unless you want to go miles and 

miles out of the way, up and down Castle Street which is a huge distance, and the 

local taxi drivers are not happy because if they want to take anyone to Wallingford 

hospital they would have to go all the way around the bypass and then come back 

up through Reading road, you can go down St Johns Road but that’s not an easy 

route either or you can come down Wantage road. Reading Road and Wantage 

road are both going to experience extremely heavy construction traffic in the next 

few years because they’re going to build…about 100 houses at least down into 

Winterbrook, and an application went before the council…550 odd houses at the 

top of Wantage Road and that’s going to make life along those two roads really 

difficult for residents. We’ve also got a gravel extraction programme which is going 

to increase traffic enormously along the bypass …we think the problems the traffic 

lights, not putting traffic down Reading road in particular which everybody will use 

because that’s the nearest route.  I would recommend that the people doing this 

survey actually go down Reading road in rush hour which is when your proposing 

to close the route…getting to the hospital…is going to involve people in a huge 

amount of expense because the taxi fares would go up. 

My concern is what’s going to be the impact on the local highway network…what’s 

the monitoring strategy going to be afterwards…have the traffic modelling been 

done to where cars are going to go instead  and from a consultation point of view 

the feeling is this has been slipped through, it all seems a bit very low key…I think 

it’s too early to make a decision (about whether for or against the proposal) …I 

appreciate there’s an issue, I just don’t feel like I’ve got the information at the 

moment. 

Most of the pollution is coming from the buses not from cars and yet its cars you’re 

going to restrict going over the bridge, but on the other hand, buses are very 

important for people who can’t afford cars…I think you need to make electric 

buses. 

Page 89

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 16 
 

(In regards to closure times) If you’re coming through Wallingford going 

somewhere else…you’d be through Wallingford long before 9 so I am not sure the 

times match up when people might be using Wallingford as a cut through…I know 

shop keepers around and if they can’t get shoppers in, they’ll close their doors 

permanently. 

It’s complete lunacy, the reason its complete lunacy is because by the district 

councils own assessment, 80% of the traffic that comes across the bridge is coming 

to the town centre, that 80% of the traffic will still have to come to the town 

centre, so instead of coming across the bridge it’ll go round the bypass or across 

one of the other two bridges, probably the bridge that leads to Reading road…is 

already a traffic trouble spot…it will create mayhem.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 90

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 17 
 

2. Watlington parking restrictions 
Door to door surveys show that around three-quarters (74%) were aware of the proposal. There was a 

slightly greater awareness from those who attended the public information event or completed it online 

(79%). 

62% of those who took part in the door to door survey stated that they disagreed with the proposal which 

is much higher compared to initial findings of one in five. A slightly greater proportion of those who 

attended the public information event or completed it online disagreed with the proposal (77%).    

 

Figure 2.1 Agreement with proposal to restrict parking in Watlington by data collection method 

Percentage of respondents– base size 39 and 66 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Watlington residents were asked whether they felt there would be a positive or negative impact on them 

or their household if the proposal was to go ahead. Around two-thirds (67%) of those who took part in the 

door to door surveys state that it would have a negative impact, and nearly one-third (31%) feel that it 

would have a positive impact.  

This compares to around three-fifths (61%) of those who completed a survey either online or at the public 

information event stating that it would have a negative impact, and one-fifth (20%) reporting that it would 

have a positive impact. Therefore, despite a higher proportion of those who completed the survey online 

or at the public information event stating that they disagreed with the proposal compared to the door to 

door surveys, a higher proportion of those who completed the door to door surveys actually report a 

negative impact. This difference is not statistically significant.   

9% 

21% 

9% 

8% 

2% 

10% 

20% 

8% 

58% 

54% 

3% Public information event and online

Door to door

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree nor disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree Don't know / no opinion

Page 91

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 18 
 

 

Figure 2.2 Anticipated impact of proposal to restrict parking in Watlington by data collection method 

Percentage of respondents– base size 39 and 66 respectively  

 

 
 
 

Residents were asked why they felt that the restriction would have a positive or negative impact on them 

or their household. There were only a handful of comments relating to positive impacts with the majority 

stating that it would lead to a reduction in traffic/journey times.  

 

Table 2.1 Themes for positive impact of restricting parking in Watlington  

Theme Frequency 

Reduced traffic/journey times  15 

Better air quality 6 

Cars won't be queued/parked outside house 4 

Other 9 
 

Reduced journey times 

Fifteen residents highlighted that it would lead to a reduction in traffic/journey times  

It will lead to better flows of traffic. 

Pass through town more quickly and safely. 

It would be easier to get round. 

 

The majority of those that report that it would have a negative impact cite speeding concerns (43 

residents) and parking problems (27 residents) which are both areas highlighted during the previous 

public consultation. During the current targeted public engagement phase however, responses also make 

mention of pre-existing parking problems which would be exacerbated by the proposal. 

20% 

31% 

20% 

3% 

61% 

67% 

Public information event and online

Door to door

Positive impact No real impact Negative impact

Page 92

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 19 
 

Table 2.2 Themes for negative impact of restricting parking in Watlington  

Theme Frequency 

Will increase speeding 43 

Will increase parking problems 27 

Dangerous/will cause more accidents 16 

Worse for pedestrians 15 

Will increase traffic 14 

Personal negative impact 10 

Dispute evidence given in consultation 4 

Other 6 
 

Will increase speeding 

The most common comment was that the proposal would lead to an increase in speeding (43 residents).  

I think it is extremely inconsiderate for residents on Couching. All that will happen 

is you will get more traffic going faster. It will pose a very real danger to 

pedestrians. 

It slows down traffic/whatever decision is made it should be done on a trial. 

We need parking bay to slow traffic down. 

 

Will increase parking problems  

27 residents expressed that the proposal will lead to an increase in parking problems. 

There's too little parking already. This will kill off trade to a small thriving village. 

Because I have limited physical mobility and there is no convenient alternative to 

park my car.  The car park in Hill Road is a painful walk from my house and I need 

to use my car a number of times each day. 

It would be good but where will residents park? 

 

Other comments  

In response to the parking restriction proposal, 17 residents who completed the survey made suggestions. 

Five residents suggested having a bypass and seven suggested ways speeding could be reduced in the area 

which included speed bumps, 20mph limit and speed cameras.   

 

Email 

Two emails were received from residents who also highlighted safety/speeding concerns as a result of the 

proposal.  

Page 93

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 20 
 

Comments made at public information event  

Below are some of the comments made by those who attended the public information event which 

provide further insight into residents’ views and the reasons behind them: 

The parking as it is now enables the likes of myself which is reaching retirement to 

cross the road because it slows the traffic down of that there is no doubt and on 

the odd occasion in the last 10 months that I’ve lived here, on the odd occasion 

when there has been little traffic parked, speed of the traffic, I can’t, it’s 

difficult…local people stop but certainly the HGVs do not always stop at the zebra 

crossing further up that I would use. 

The cars that would be removed if the scheme went through where would they 

park? Because they do belong to residents who haven’t got parking areas…and at 

the moment they do act as a good calming measure for pedestrians. 

I am less opposed to it (parking restrictions) than I was when I came in as I hadn’t 

realised that we would still be keeping the bays for evening parking so people 

would still park when they get home from work cos I was concerned well where are 

all these parked cars going to go, I was also concerned though that there’s not a 20 

mile an hour limit being imposed…I am very concerned of the danger 

here…especially the large lorries. 

I am against removing them (parking)…my vehicle access is right on that tightest 

part of the road so I rely on vehicles blocked by the parking in order to create a gap 

so I can get in and out of my driveway. 

I can’t see much point in removing the residential parking unless they move that 

zebra crossing because I’ve had so many near misses and that’s when traffic is slow 

and also every morning at five past six Monday to Friday…the speed the cars come 

down at that time, so there’s no reducing the traffic, you’re just speeding it all up 

and I feel strongly that South Oxfordshire District Council has a duty of care to all 

residents. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 94

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 21 
 

3. Watlington HGV weight limit enforcement 
Door to door surveys show that 64% were aware of the proposal compared to 68% of those who 

completed a survey either online or at the public information event. 

The vast majority, regardless of how they completed the survey, agreed with the proposal (90-91%). The 

level of agreement is in line with the public consultation phase.    

Figure 3.1 Agreement with proposal to enforce 7.5 tone weight limit in Watlington by data collection method 

Percentage of respondents– base size 39 and 66 respectively 

 
 

Watlington residents were asked whether they felt there would be a positive or negative impact on them 

or their household if the proposal was to go ahead. Nine out of ten (90%) state that it would have a 

positive impact. This compares to around three-quarters (76%) of those who completed a survey either 

online or at the public information event. This is due to 21% stating that it would have no real impact on 

them as opposed to a substantial proportion reporting that it would have a negative impact.   

Figure 3.2 Anticipated impact of proposal to enforce 7.5 tone weight limit in Watlington by data collection method 

Percentage of respondents– base size 39 and 66 respectively  

 

82% 

87% 

9% 

3% 

5% 

8% 3% 

3% 2% Public information event and online

Door to door

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree nor disagree

Disagree Strongly disagree Don't know / no opinion

76% 

90% 

21% 

3% 

3% 

8% 

Public information event and online

Door to door

Positive impact No real impact Negative impact

Page 95

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 22 
 

Residents were asked why they felt that the restriction would have a positive or negative impact on them 

or their household. The table below summarises the themes that have come out from the comments 

relating to positive impacts. A common theme was around the actual enforcement of the weight tonne 

limit as opposed to a reason for believing that it would have a positive impact which is line with the 

comments made during the initial consultation. Those that did highlight a reason typically felt that it 

would help to improve the flow of traffic.  

Table 3.1 Themes for positive impacts of enforcing 7.5 tone weight limit in Watlington  

Theme Frequency 

Enforcement  27 

Improve traffic flow 24 

Shaking/damage of buildings/roads  12 

Safety 12 

Vehicle emission/pollution  11 

Noise 5 

Reduce large vehicles 4 

Other 23 
 

Enforcement  

The most common response from those that felt that it would have a positive impact was not directly 

relevant to the question, with 27 residents making a comment about the actual enforcement of the 

weight limit. People highlighted that the restriction already existed but was not currently enforced and 

some were concerned that it was not possible to enforce. A few residents questioned where these 

vehicles would go, suggesting the need for a bypass. 

There is a restriction but it’s not enforced. 

But how do you police that/signs are already there. 

I don’t know where the trucks will go. 

 
 

Improve traffic flow 

The next most frequent theme was that traffic flow would be improved (24 residents). 

Because it might reduce the number of heavy vehicles which cause severe traffic 

congestion because of their limited manoeuvrability. 

HGVs appear to be responsible for many of the traffic hold-ups. 

Fewer large vehicles would improve the traffic flow. 

 

Page 96

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 23 
 

Shaking/damage of buildings/roads 

12 residents report that the HGVs have a negative effect on buildings and roads.  

Reduce damage to historic buildings due to large vehicles passing each other on 

pavements. 

The number of very large, unsuitable vehicles come to a stop where I live and the 

house shakes with the juddering. They go through the night and in the early 

morning.  There have been a number of accidents/blockages/house damage in 

recent years. 

Large vehicles affect the state of the road, pavement and bollards.  

 

Safety 

12 residents report that HGVs in the area are a danger to pedestrians.  

There will be death soon/they are too near residential property. 

They cause danger to pedestrians on the pavements because of their size related to 

the pavement width and the fact that the driver cannot see the pedestrians clearly. 

Reduce risk as a pedestrian. 

 

An email from a resident also highlighted safety concerns: 

We see pushchairs and children pushed up against walls on a regular basis by 

oversized lorries and trucks, or even just large cars that do not give enough space 

between themselves and the pavement. It is only a matter of time that it is a small 

person that gets knocked over and not just a bollard (you only need to look at one 

of these to appreciate that they are hit on a regular basis). 

 

Below are some of the comments made by those who attended the public information event which 

provide further insight into residents’ views and the reasons behind them: 

I don’t think the HGVs are being taken into account as much as they should be 

because although they aren’t contributing so much to the air quality, when one  

comes through it then gets stuck and causes back up…  

Being on the tightest part of the road so if you get say two large vehicles trying to 

pass each other, they physically can’t because of the width of the road so what 

they have to do is mount the pavements…they’re constantly on and off their brakes 

so you’ve got that vibration, I live in a historic listed building, that vibration is going 

through the property all the time causing damage and my mother being disabled 

her bedroom window is within 3 or 4 feet of these large vehicles. It’s not physically 

possible for them to get past each other… 

 

Page 97

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 24 
 

There were only five responses for why the proposal would have a negative impact.  

Table 3.2 Themes for negative impacts of enforcing 7.5 tone weight limit in Watlington  

Theme Frequency 

Routing  3 

Bypass 2 

Evening traffic  2 

Other 2 
 

Routing 

Three people questioned where these larger vehicles would go. 

How will they get on to the motorway? 

What is an alternative route for them? I can’t give you a view unless I know where 

the traffic will go. 

Where else could they get on to motorway? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 98

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 25 
 

4. Henley 
Henley residents were shown a list of district-wide measures that have already been agreed in the air 

quality action plan (See Appendix C) and asked if they were aware of these proposals. Only 37% of those 

who took part in the door to door surveys stated that they were aware. They were subsequently asked if 

they were aware that modelling to see if measures to improve air quality in Henley had been undertaken. 

Only 28% stated that they were aware of this.  

Those who completed the survey online or at the public information event showed greater awareness, 

with 49% stating that they were aware of the district-wide proposals and 50% being aware that modelling 

to see if measures to improve air quality in Henley had been undertaken.   

Figure 4.1 Anticipated impact of proposals and modelling by data collection method 

Percentage of respondents  

 

61% of those who took part in the door to door survey feel that not enough is being done to address the 

problem of air quality in Henley. This compares to 92% of those who completed the survey online or at 

the public information event. This is a statistically significant difference.  

 

 

 

 

 

50% 

28% 

49% 

37% 

50% 

72% 

51% 

63% 

Public information event and online (56)

Doorstep (175)

Public information event and online (55)

Door to door (175)

A
w

ar
e 

o
f

m
o

d
el

lin
g 

in
H

en
le

y

A
w

ar
e 

o
f

p
ro

p
o

se
d

d
is

tr
ic

t-
w

id
e

m
ea

su
re

s

Yes No

Page 99

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 26 
 

Figure 4.2 Agreement that enough is being done to address air quality problems by data collection method 

Percentage of respondents– base size 175 and 53 respectively  

 

Residents who stated that that they either did not feel enough was being done to address air quality 

problems in Henley, or did not know whether enough was being done, were asked what more could be 

done by the Council in order to address the problem.  

The most popular suggestions were to enable greener forms of travel (61 residents) which covered a wide 

range of ideas of how people can avoid using their cars, and restricting HGVs in the area (52 residents).  

Table 4.1 Themes for how air quality could be improved in Henley 

Theme  Frequency  

Enable greener forms of travel  61 

Restrictions to HGVs 52 

Greener vehicles   32 

Issues with named streets 32 

Another bridge 32 

More greenery  31 

Bypass needed 29 

Traffic issues 25 

Parking issues 21 

Encourage vehicles to turn off engine when waiting 17 

Speed restrictions 14 

Issues with traffic lights 12 

Personal impact of air pollution 12 

Concern over park and ride  11 

Low emissions zone 8 

Issues with housing development 7 

Noise pollution 4 

Restrict diesel cars 4 

Congestion charge 4 

Personalised support 2 

Concern over bypass 2 

Other 50 
 

10% 

92% 

61% 

8% 

29% 

Public information event and online

Doorstep

Yes No Don't know

Page 100

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 27 
 

Enable greener forms of travel 

61 residents felt that enabling greener forms of travel would help to address the air quality problems. 

Many were in favour of the park and stride/ride schemes in order to do this. Some residents suggested 

pedestrianising certain areas or creating cycle paths. A small number of residents suggested improving rail 

and bus services.  

Good to have a park and stride scheme. 

Incentivise park & ride - parking out of town free, in town expensive. 

Put good cycle lanes into Henley. Discourage parking and substitute more, better 

more frequent buses (clean). Extend the pedestrian area. 

Reduce traffic by promoting rail and improving public transport. 

Centre of town would be better to be a car free zone like in Sweden. 

 

Restrictions to HGVs 

A popular suggestion was to restrict HGVs in the area (52 residents).  

Reduce HGVs cutting through Henley, weight limits on trucks. 

Should be ban on heavy goods vehicles. 

Bypass the roads in the town for all heavy goods vehicles. 

 

Greener vehicles 

A frequent suggestion was to introduce greener vehicles (32 residents). This included replacing buses with 

greener/electric alternatives, as well as incentivising having a green/electric vehicle. Some residents also 

mentioned that Henley’s taxis should be green too.  

Green buses good, and taxis. 

Electric bus fleet needed. 

Need to make electric cars cheaper. All council vehicles could be electric. Lead by 

example. 

Provide parking permit incentives for green vehicles… 

 

Page 101

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 28 
 

Issues with named streets 

A number of residents identified certain streets as being problem areas that the Council should focus their 

attention on (30 residents). In particular Reading Road, Greys Road and Duke Street were identified as 

areas of concern.  

Currently HGVs are mounting on pavements on Reading Road!! 

Reading road between 7-10 is terrible, people leaving engines running. 

Reading Road quite congested at peak times. 

Residential parking needed on Greys Road. 

Duke Street is terrible. Bypass needed especially for HGV’s. 

 

Another bridge 

32 residents suggested an additional bridge is needed in order to cope with the traffic levels in Henley. 

Another bridge to bypass town a good idea. 

3rd bridge is necessary between Henley and Reading. 

Third bridge for big lorries. 

Bypass and bridge needed. 

Consider more practical immediate options such as building more bridges to reduce 

concentration of traffic in these areas. 

 

More greenery  

31 residents suggested incorporating more greenery within Henley, in particular having green walls.  

Plants have been cleaning up our mess for years- lets have more ACTIVE walls, 

vertical farming. 

Grow plants that filter and absorb pollution such as Silver Birch and Ivy throughout 

the town centre. 

Green walls a good idea. 

 

Bypass needed 

24 residents state that a bypass is required.  

Page 102

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 29 
 

We need a bypass! Urgently! Everything else is window-dressing! 

Bypass needed especially for HGV’s. 

Aware of green walls although without bypass solutions may be a drop in the 

ocean. 

Bypass and third bridge needed. 

 

One email was received from a resident highlighting similar issues already discussed. 

Below are some of the comments made by those who attended the public information event which 

provide further insight into residents’ views and the reasons behind them: 

I think the air quality in Henley is pretty bad as a local resident, there’s too much 

private traffic coming through, and I think essentially if you could restrict the 

private traffic coming into the town maybe at certain hours that would be good, 

pedestrianise streets, maybe have electric cars, promote the use electric cars. 

We’ve got to do something because it’s awful as you go down the bottom of Greys 

Hill turning into Duke Street when the traffics stuck at a red light, it’s awful, you 

can feel it actually hitting your throat so something I think has to be done.  

Small things aren’t going to make enough difference, it’s a big problem, and it’s no 

good talking about plants and silly things like this that’s been going on. 

It’s no longer enjoyable to come in to town… I avoid the town because of the 

pollution, so when it gets that bad, you naturally start thinking about moving and I 

think that there’s been others that have done so and are going to do so. 

The emissions being produced by private cars is the biggest problem…no initiative  

about encouraging bicycling, encouraging places to store bicycles, quite often in 

Henley the bicycle bays are full and you see bikes attached everywhere… for a 

small town as we are there’s an initiative to encourage people to come into the 

town centre on foot or human power transport bicycle… and the other issue that’s 

not really discussed is how to remove the pollution that’s in the air, it’s going to be 

there no matter what we do and as they’ve already mentioned in a separate report 

about  putting a green wall… the idea of doing that in more places so your actually 

filtering the air, you know Henley’s not that green for being a small town…and it 

could be much more so…we’re talking about a park and ride and all that- don’t 

even drive!  

Page 103

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 30 
 

 

Discussion  
Wallingford bridge restriction 

The previous public consultation held between 

February and March 2016 found that the 

majority of residents were in favour of the 

proposal to restrict access to Wallingford bridge 

(60%). Door to door surveys completed within 

the streets considered to be directly affected 

supports this initial finding (58% agreement 

rate).   

This proposal has however been shown to be 

controversial. Strong feelings regarding this 

proposal were demonstrated during the 

targeted public engagement, where a total of 

147 surveys were completed at the public 

information event and nearly 40 emails/letters 

were submitted opposing the proposal. 

Demographic breakdown shows that just under 

a fifth (33 residents) of those who completed 

the survey during the public information event 

or online were under 35. This level of interest 

demonstrated by a younger age group, who 

often do not engage in these types of 

consultations, shows the strength of feeling 

regarding the proposal. This can be put into 

context when considering that only 4 out of the 

61 and 3 out of the 51 who completed a survey 

online or during the public information events 

and gave their age, were under 35 for 

Watlington and Henley respectively.  

During the previous public consultation, a fifth 

(20%) disagreed with the proposal. Door to door 

surveys during the current public engagement 

work supports the initial findings, with 26% 

stating that they disagreed with the proposal. 

Survey data collected during the public 

information event and online shows far greater 

resistance, with a 72% disagreement rate. 

Furthermore, just 28% of those who took part in 

the door to door surveys state that the proposal 

would have a negative impact on them, 

compared to 66% of those who completed the 

survey online or during the public information 

event. These differences are statistically 

significant and suggest that restrictions to the 

bridge is more likely to be opposed and have a 

negative impact on wider the wider population 

of Wallingford, rather than those who were 

identified as being ‘directly affected’, who on the 

whole appear to support it.   

It is worth noting however that due to the self-

selection methodology of the surveys completed 

online and during the public information event, 

there is a chance of duplicate surveys being 

submitted which would in turn skew results. 

Those who took part in the public information 

event or online survey were also anticipated to 

be more likely to have views at either ends of 

the spectrum (positive or negative).  

Nevertheless the door to door surveys, which 

were undertaken with one person in each 

household, cover a more representative range 

of people and suggest that there is still a level of 

resistance to the proposal, although perhaps not 

Page 104

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 31 
 

as widespread as the data from the self-

selection methods would suggest. 

Those who did feel that the proposal would have 

a positive impact on them or their household 

stated that it would reduce traffic and improve 

air quality. Those who stated that it would have 

a negative impact typically highlighted that it 

would simply move traffic and congestion 

elsewhere, impact Wallingford economically, 

and cause inconvenience and disruption to 

journeys, particularly for work and school drops. 

These common reasons reinforce the fact that 

the negative impacts are ones that are not 

confined to those living within close proximity of 

the bridge but can indeed affect wider residents 

too. The potential effect on journeys to work 

and the school run may also explain the greater 

interest of younger residents in the proposal.  

51 residents who took part in the survey made 

suggestions of how air quality in Wallingford 

could be improved. This included further points 

to consider when restricting bridge access such 

as limiting or stopping HGVs from using the 

bridge, as well as other ideas; for example 

numerous residents felt that the traffic light 

systems needed to be better synchronised.  

 

Watlington parking restriction 

There are vast differences in the level of support 

found for the restriction of parking in Watlington 

in order to improve traffic flow. The previous 

public consultation showed a 62% agreement 

rate and 21% disagreement rate, suggesting that 

the majority are in favour of the proposal. 

However, the current targeted public 

engagement work suggest feelings amongst 

Watlington residents who are likely to be 

‘directly impacted’ are far more negative. 62% of 

those who took part in the door to door survey 

stated that they disagreed with the proposal, 

rising to 77% of those who took part during the 

public information event or an online survey. 

The majority of those who took part in the 

targeted public engagement work felt that the 

proposal would have a negative impact on them 

or their household.  People were concerned that 

the parking restrictions would result in an 

increase in speeding on the affected roads and 

will cause/increase parking problems. It will 

therefore be important to address these 

concerns if the proposal is to go ahead. Those 

who felt that it would have a positive impact 

highlighted that it would indeed reduce traffic 

and journey times.  

 

Watlington 7.5 tonne weight enforcement  

Results from the previous public consultation as 

well as the current targeted public engagement 

work shows that there is strong support for 

greater enforcement of the 7.5 tonne weight 

limit in Watlington. 84% stated that they agreed 

with the proposal during the previous public 

consultation and 90-91% during the current 

targeted public engagement (with a smaller but 

more relevant sample). Whilst this proposal 

shows a generally high level of support, the 

strength of support was particularly evident 

Page 105

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 32 
 

during the current public engagement work with 

over 80% stating that they ‘strongly agree’ with 

the proposal compared to the 61% during the 

previous district wide public consultation. Only 

3% from each of the data collection methods 

disagreed with the proposal.   

The driving force behind residents support for 

the proposal appears to not always be related to 

the low vehicle emission agenda.  Common 

positive impacts appear to be that it would 

improve traffic flow making travelling easier for 

residents; reducing shaking/damage to 

buildings/roads; and improved safety for 

pedestrians.  This proposal therefore appears to 

have numerous benefits for local residents who 

are able to see the potential for wider benefits 

beyond the scope of this strategy.  

The support for this proposal sits within a 

backdrop of what appears to be a general 

feeling of wanting to limit HGVS within the 

district. This is supported by the fact that 

measures to reduce emissions from HGVs and 

vans as well as the greater enforcement of the 

7.5 tonne weight limit in Watlington, were two 

of the most positively received proposals by 

residents during the previous public 

consultation. During the current targeted public 

engagement work, the need to limit or ban 

HGVs was also highlighted both by Henley and 

Wallingford residents. Strategies to reduce 

vehicle emissions through weight restrictions 

zones therefore appear to be likely to be 

supported by residents.  

 

Henley  

The majority of Henley residents did not feel 

that enough was being done to address the 

problem of air quality in Henley. This may well 

be linked to a lack of awareness of both the 

proposed district wide measures, and the 

modelling that has already taken place and so 

communication may well be an issue here. 

Residents suggested a range of ideas. The most 

popular suggestion was to enable greener forms 

of travel by having, for example, park and 

ride/stride campaigns and creating cycle 

paths/pedestrianising areas. Many of the 

suggestions tie in with the district wide 

measures that have already been agreed in the 

air quality action plan and the three other 

additional actions that have been proposed 

which again suggests a lack of awareness of 

what has already been proposed. However, 

having another bridge and having a bypass were 

two additional suggestions that were popular 

with residents. Despite being informed that 

evidence suggests that most emissions were 

being produced by private cars as opposed to 

busses and lorries, restrictions to HGVs was still 

the second most popular suggestion. Similar to 

Watlington, this may well relate to wider 

perceived benefits beyond the remit of lowering 

vehicle emissions or improving air quality. Many 

residents identified streets considered to be 

‘problem areas’. Ensuring that proposals either 

improve or at best do not ‘appear’ to add to 

these problems may therefore be beneficial.  

Page 106

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

  

Page 107

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 34 
 

 
 

Appendix A:  Wallingford door to door survey  

Appendix B:  Watlington door to door survey 

Appendix C:  Henley door to door survey  

Appendix D:  Wallingford sample profile  

Appendix E:  Watlington sample profile 

Appendix F:  Henley sample profile 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

  

Appendices  

Page 108

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 35 
 

Appendix A: Wallingford door to door survey 
(online and consultation survey varies slightly) 

 

Page 109

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 36 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 110

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 37 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 111

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 38 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 112

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 39 
 

Appendix B: Watlington door to door survey 
(online and consultation survey varies slightly) 

 

 

 

Page 113

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 40 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 114

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 41 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 115

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 42 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 116

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 43 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 117

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 44 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 118

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 45 
 

Appendix C: Henley door to door survey (online 
and consultation survey varies slightly) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 119

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 46 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 120

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 47 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 121

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 48 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 122

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 49 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 123

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 50 
 

Appendix D: Wallingford sample profile 
 

Gender Door to door Online and consultation 

Male 33 99 

Female 55 95 

Prefer not to say 0 6 
 
 

Age Door to door Online and consultation 

18 to 24 2 11 

25 to 34 11 22 

35 to 44 12 30 

45 to 54 19 32 

55 to 64 16 45 

65+ 28 59 

Prefer not to say  0 5 
 
 

Length of time residing in local 
area 

Door to door Online and consultation 

Up to 1 year  11 0 

1-2 years  3 4 

3-5 years  11 11 

6-10 years  15 25 

11-15 years  7 15 

16-20 years  9 25 

More than 20 years  32 123 
 
 

Work status Door to door Online and consultation 

Employed  - part time 11 24 

Employed  - full time 32 75 

Self employed 11 18 

Unemployed 0 1 

Full time student 1 4 

Retired 29 66 

Looking after home or family 4 5 

Long term sick or disabled 0 0 

Other  0 5 
 
 

Ethnicity  Door to door Online and consultation 

White: 
English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern 
Irish/British 

79 167 

BME 9 12 
 
 
 
 

Page 124

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 51 
 

Appendix E: Watlington sample profile 
Gender Door to door Online and consultation 

Male 19 27 

Female 20 37 

Prefer not to say 0 0 
 

 

Age Door to door Online and consultation 

18 to 24 1 0 

25 to 34 5 4 

35 to 44 6 5 

45 to 54 5 12 

55 to 64 7 17 

65+ 15 23 

Prefer not to say  0 0 
 
 

Length of time residing in local 
area 

Door to door Online and consultation 

Up to 1 year  4 1 

1-2 years  3 2 

3-5 years  4 11 

6-10 years  8 10 

11-15 years  4 6 

16-20 years  6 10 

More than 20 years  10 25 
 
 

Work status Door to door Online and consultation 

Employed  - part time 3 6 

Employed  - full time 12 22 

Self employed 6 10 

Unemployed 1 1 

Full time student 0 0 

Retired 14 24 

Looking after home or family 2 0 

Long term sick or disabled 0 0 

Other  1 1 
 

 

Ethnicity  Door to door Online and consultation 

White: 
English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern 
Irish/British 

37 54 

BME 2 3 
 
 
 
 

Page 125

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 52 
 

Appendix F: Henley sample profile 
Gender Door to door Online and consultation 

Male 81 31 

Female 94 25 

Prefer not to say 0 1 
 
 

Age Door to door Online and consultation 

18 to 24 11 2 

25 to 34 16 1 

35 to 44 28 3 

45 to 54 28 10 

55 to 64 22 15 

65+ 69 20 

Prefer not to say  0 3 
 

 

Length of time residing in local 
area 

Door to door Online and consultation 

Up to 1 year  13 0 

1-2 years  7 4 

3-5 years  18 7 

6-10 years  27 9 

11-15 years  15 8 

16-20 years  9 3 

More than 20 years  86 27 
 

  

Work status Door to door Online and consultation 

Employed  - part time 13 6 

Employed  - full time 67 11 

Self employed 8 5 

Unemployed 1 0 

Full time student 6 2 

Retired 70 26 

Looking after home or family 7 2 

Long term sick or disabled 1 1 

Other  1 0 
 
 

Ethnicity  Door to door Online and consultation 

White: 
English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern 
Irish/British 

160 45 

BME 15 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 126

Agenda Item 6



                     

   
 

                                                     Measurement  Evaluation Learning: Using evidence to shape better services                     Page 53 
 

 
 

Page 127

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy - Composite Summary of Public Engagement (March 2017) 1 

 

 

Low Emissions Strategy 2016  

COMPOSITE SUMMARY OF PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 

Residents views on the proposed low emissions strategy for South 

Oxfordshire   

 

MARCH 2017  

  

Page 129

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy - Composite Summary of Public Engagement (March 2017) 2 

INTRODUCTION 

Between February 2016 and November 2016, South Oxfordshire District sought the views 

of residents on a proposed low emissions strategy for the district.  The strategy set out 

actions the council could take to improve air quality across the district and in Henley, 

Watlington and Wallingford where high levels of pollution had previously been identified. 

This short report summarises the outcomes of all public engagement activities related to the 

proposed low emissions strategy. Detailed reports of earlier engagement activities are also 

available from the council’s website: http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/about-us/have-your-say  

Activities included a district wide public survey, as well as additional surveys and drop-in 

events targeted at residents living in Henley, Wallingford and Watlington.  These activities 

are detailed in the table below.   

Table 1: engagement methods 

Method Objective Who When No. Responses 

A district-

wide online 

public 

consultation 

To gather feedback from 

residents across the district 

on all proposals in the 

strategy 

SODC February 

– March 

2016 

217 

Local 

surveys of 

residents in 

Wallingford 

and 

Watlington 

To provide additional 

opportunity for residents in 

these towns to provide 

additional feedback on 

actions proposed for their 

settlement  

M·E·L 

Research 
October 

2016 

127 sampled, 

doorstep 

interviews 

+ 

272 elective 

returns made 

online or at drop-

in events 

Local 

survey of 

residents in 

Henley 

To provide additional 

opportunity for residents in 

this town to comment on 

whether they thought enough 

was being done to tackle air 

pollution in Henley (nb no 

settlement specific proposals 

were included in the strategy)  

M·E·L 

Research 
October 

2016 

175 sampled 

doorstep 

interviews 

+ 

55 elective 

returns made 

online or at drop-

in events 

Drop-in 

events in 

Wallingford, 

Watlington 

and Henley 

To provide residents with 

additional opportunity to 

discuss the problem of air 

quality and the strategy with 

council officers  

SODC & 
M·E·L 

Research 

October 

2016 

N/A 

 

In total, we received 846 completed surveys but it’s possible some people may have 

participated in more than one engagement activity.   

Page 130

Agenda Item 6

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/about-us/have-your-say


 

South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy - Composite Summary of Public Engagement (March 2017) 3 

DISTRICT-WIDE PROPOSALS 

In the first public consultation, there was broad support for all district-wide policies proposed 

in the draft strategy.  All but one of these policies was supported by at least 80 per cent of 

respondents.  People were less keen on supporting the use of electric vehicles however, 

but the majority (69 percent) were still in favour of this action.  

Figure 1: District-wide proposals agreement (district-wide survey) 

 
 

123

113

109

99

73

50

60

64

60

60

13

11

12

18

35

2

4

3

7

15

3

5

3

10

9

Reducing the impact new developments have on air quality
(192)

Reducing emissions from HGVs and vans (194)

Reducing bus emissions (192)

Helping people reduce emissions from vehicles (194)

Supporting the use of electric and low emission vehicles (193)

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree nor disagree Disagree Strongly disagree Don't know

Key issues 

• A number of respondents expressed concern that there were no specific proposals 

for Henley set out in the strategy (see P10) 

• There was concern that recently announced cuts to bus services would worsen the 

problem of air pollution in the district 

• There were many supportive statements in favour of encouraging drivers to switch 

off car engines when stationary 

• Many people said the council should encourage greater use of public transport, 

cycling and walking as alternatives to car use 

• There were mixed views about electric cars. Respondents pointed out the need for 

more charging stations whilst other felt the costs of the technology are prohibitive 

• Some respondents felt that more should be done to restrict HGV access to town 

centres 

• Some people expressed concern that new housing development will always result in 

more air pollution     

Page 131

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy - Composite Summary of Public Engagement (March 2017) 4 

WALLINGFORD BRIDGE 

In the initial district-wide consultation, there was majority support for the proposal to restrict 

vehicular access to Wallingford bridge.  When fieldworkers spoke to people living in streets 

likely to be affected by the change, there was a similar level of support, albeit slightly more 

disagreed (one in four).  It was only when other residents living in the town were provided 

with an opportunity to complete surveys either online or at our drop-in event that many 

people (72 per cent) said they disagreed with the proposal.  This could be due to mounting 

awareness and campaigning against the proposal by some groups.  

Figure 2: Wallingford bridge proposal agreement (all surveys) 

 

 

When local residents were asked about the impact this proposal would have on them, most 

people living in the streets identified by the council (58 per cent) said it would have a 

positive impact.  But in the surveys completed online and at our event, the majority (65 per 

cent) thought it would have a negative impact. 

Figure 3: Wallingford bridge proposal perceived impact (local surveys) 

 

 

32

18

67

16

33

47

6

10

27

27

15

13

120

8

24

4

4

11

Additional local survey completed online and at public event
(205)

Sampled local door to door survey (88)

District-wide public survey (189)

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree nor disagree Disagree Strongly disagree Don't know

32

51

38

12

135

25

Additional local survey completed online and at public event
(205)

Sampled local door to door survey (88)

Positive impact No real impact Negative impact

Page 132

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy - Composite Summary of Public Engagement (March 2017) 5 

 

WATLINGTON TRAFFIC FLOW 

A similar pattern of support can be seen for the proposal to improve the flow of traffic 

through Watlington.  Again, in the initial district-wide consultation there was majority support 

for the proposal (61 per cent).  But when we undertook a survey of people living in affected 

streets, and when we spoke to people at the drop-in event, there appears to be significant 

resistance to the proposal.  Again this viewpoint may have been influenced by local groups 

campaigning against the proposal at this time.       

Figure 4: Watlington traffic flow proposal agreement (all surveys) 

 

 

Disagreement with this proposal appears to be driven by a view that it would have a 

negative impact on the settlement.  The majority of respondents said it would have a 

negative impact in both the sampled door to door and elective surveys.   

6

8

65

6

3

52

1

4

24

13

3

19

38

21

21

2

0

8

Additional local survey completed online and at public event
(66)

Sampled local door to door survey (39)

District-wide public survey (189)

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree nor disagree Disagree Strongly disagree Don't know

Key issues 

• Those in favour of restricting access to the bridge felt it would reduce traffic in the 

town and improve air quality 

• However, these positive comments were outweighed by views that restricting access 

to the bridge may cause congestion elsewhere; something that came out of both the 

public and local surveys 

• Some people felt that this proposal would have a detrimental impact on local 

businesses 

• A few people said they were concerned about disruption to their usual journeys 

around town 

Page 133

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy - Composite Summary of Public Engagement (March 2017) 6 

Figure 5: Watlington traffic flow proposal perceived impact (local surveys) 

 

 

WATLINGTON HGV WEIGHT RESTRICTION 

Enforcing the HGV weight limit has much more support than the proposal to improve the 

traffic flow in Watlington.  84 per cent of respondents to the public survey agreed with this 

action, increasing to approximately 90 per cent in the sampled door to door survey and 

additional local survey.  

Figure 6: Watlington HGV proposal agreement (all surveys) 

 

13

12

13

1

40

26

Additional local survey completed online and at public event
(66)

Sampled local door to door survey (39)

Positive impact No real impact Negative impact

54

34

114

6

1

43

3

3

20

0

1

2

2

0

4

1

0

5

Additional local survey completed online and at public event
(66)

Sampled local door to door survey (39)

District-wide public survey (188)

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree nor disagree Disagree Strongly disagree Don't know

Key issues 

• Those in favour of the proposal welcomed the possibility of easing traffic congestion 

on the main streets; Couching Street, Shirburn Street and Brook Street  

• But the large majority of comments were about concerns that traffic speed would 

increase, posing a safety risk for residents 

• Others were worried about reducing parking capacity and recommendations were 

made to find alternative parking for residents on the affected streets 

• Some people felt the proposal might actually increase traffic in the settlement as the 

route may become more popular  

Page 134

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy - Composite Summary of Public Engagement (March 2017) 7 

Corresponding with this strong level of agreement, most people said that better 

enforcement of the HGV weight limit would have a positive impact on them.  Only five 

people said it would have a negative impact. 

Figure 7: Watlington HGV proposal perceived impact (local surveys) 

 

 

 

HENLEY MEASURES 

Surveys undertaken in Henley revealed that the majority of residents in Henley are not 

aware of the measures the council is already taking to improve air quality in the town.  This 

may be why concerns were raised about the lack of specific proposals for Henley in the low 

emissions strategy.  

Figure 8: Awareness of existing measures in Henley (local surveys) 

 

50

35

14

1

2

3

Additional local survey completed online and at public event
(66)

Sampled local door to door survey (39)

Positive impact No real impact Negative impact

27

65

28

110

Additional local survey completed online and at public event
(55)

Sampled door to door survey (175)

Yes No

Key issues 

• Most comments were supportive of the proposal stating that enforcement of the 

weight restriction should be happening anyway 

• Some people felt that better enforcement would result in improved traffic flow through 

the settlement and improve safety 

• A number of people said that enforcement could be improved by using ANPR 

cameras 

• Of the few people who disagreed, they questioned whether there are alternative 

routes for HGVs 

 

Page 135

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire Low Emissions Strategy - Composite Summary of Public Engagement (March 2017) 8 

When the actions already being undertaken by the council were explained to respondents, 

the overwhelming majority remained unconvinced enough was being done to tackle the 

problem of air quality in the town.  Only in the door to door survey, one in ten people had 

confidence in the work that’s being done. 

Figure 9: Enough is being done in Henley agreement (local surveys) 

 

0

18

49

106

4

51

Additional local survey completed online and at public event
(53)

Sampled door to door survey (175)

Yes No Don't know

Key issues 

• Many of the people surveyed felt that more could be done to improve air quality in 

Henley.  Suggestions included, providing alternative ‘greener’ forms of transport, 

restricting access to HGVs and building another bridge or a bypass 

• A number of people referred to problems with congestion in specific streets, 

including Reading Road, Greys Road and Duke Street 

Page 136

Agenda Item 6



Appendix 5 
Wallingford Bridge Petition 
Minutes of Council Meeting – 20 July 2017 
 
Diane Wyatt, the petition organiser, spoke on behalf of nearly 1700 petitioners 
from Wallingford or the neighbouring area. They were petitioning Council not to 
close the bridge, even for a trial period. They believed that it would simply divert 
traffic to other areas and displace the air quality problems. It would damage local 
businesses in Wallingford. Other options should be considered, including better 
traffic light phasing and more environmentally friendly buses. 

 
Tony Harbour, the Cabinet member, responded to the address and moved a 
motion to refer the petition to the General Licensing Committee for consideration 
as the appropriate body, together with any views expressed by councillors at the 
Council meeting. Councillor David Dodds, Chairman of the General Licensing 
Committee, seconded the motion. 

 
Councillor Harbour thanked Diane Wyatt and the people of Wallingford for the 
petition. He explained that the Environment Act 1995 placed a statutory duty on 
councils to address issues of air quality. The council adopted an air quality action 
plan in February 2015, which included a Low Emissions Strategy. The only 
modelled solution which improved air quality in Wallingford involved closing the 
bridge for a few hours per day and would only be done on a trial basis. The trial 
would assess air quality, traffic and the impact on local businesses. Public safety 
and public transport would not be compromised. Other options were considered 
but were either not viable, or would not bring about significant improvements to 
air quality.  

 
Councillors debated this motion. There was concern that the public would not 
have full access to information, as the Low Emissions Strategy would only be 
finalised at the General Licensing Committee after which councillors and the 
public would wish to debate this strategy. 

 
The committee considered that the issues involved were significant and that 
further consideration needed to be given to all of the options and issues, 
including: enforcing the weight limit on the bridge; modelling the effect of closures 
on the wider road network; the issues of damaging business; isolating 
Crowmarsh from Wallingford, and the provision of more rapid electric vehicle 
charging points.  

 
Although the district council had responsibility for the air quality, the county 
council was responsible for highways, and issues were being debated between 
these councils, and other bodies in respect of air quality in Wallingford, 
Watlington and Henley. 

 
An amendment was proposed, and seconded, that recommendations from the 
General Licensing Committee should come back to full Council for further debate 
and ratification. 

 

Page 137

Agenda Item 6



Some councillors also considered that the General Licensing Committee was the 
right and proper place to consider all of the issues and would include expert 
opinion and be open to all councillors and to the public. The matter would come 
back to Council or Cabinet (as appropriate) if there were budgetary implications 
to be considered.  

  
Council debated the amendment. 

 
A full debate would be had in General Licensing Committee, and it would be 
premature to suggest that it needs to come back to Council at this point. The 
General Licensing Committee was provided with powers and controls to take 
issues forward. 

 
However, other members felt that this was a political discussion and should be 
held in full Council. 

 
The mover and seconder of the main motion accepted the amendment. 
Councillor Harbour stated that he remained concerned that it would undermine 
the work of the General Licensing Committee. He reminded members that the 
district council could only make decisions on recommendations which concerned 
public highways as Oxfordshire County Council were the highways authority. He 
also confirmed that a briefing session would be held before the General Licensing 
Committee. 

 
RESOLVED 

 
1. To refer the petition to the General Licensing Committee for consideration, 

together with councillor views expressed at this meeting. 
 
2. That the General Licensing Committee make recommendations to Council on 

the Low Emissions Strategy for final approval.   
 

1. The committee is requested to consider the petition  

 

Page 138

Agenda Item 6


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Low emission strategy
	Appendix 1 Low Emission Strategy
	Appendix 2 -  Consultation report 1 - 2016
	Appendix 3  MEL Public Engagement Summary
	Appendix 4 - Consultation Composite Report
	Appendix 5 - Wallingford Bridge Petition




